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Report of independent certified public accountants

- Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Resources for
Human Development, Inc. and subsidiaries (RHD) as of June 30, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of unrestricted revenues, expenditures and other changes in unrestricted net
assets, changes in net assets, functional expenditures and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of RHD’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemnents are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of June 30, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 7,
2005, on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, That report is
an mntegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audits.

Ifoch trnan, [k D f Lol 2.

Philadelphia, PA
Jamary 7, 2005

2000 Market Street ¢ Suite 500 o Philadelphia, PA 19103 » PERONE 215-496-3200 e Fax 215-496-9604



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash available for general use
Limited use cash, contractual restrictions
Cash and cash equivalents

Limited use cash, representative payee cash funds

Grants and services receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $450,000 for 2004 and $857,074 for 2003

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Other assets:
Equity investments in companies, net of valuation allowances
of $996,970 for 2004 and $1,010,802 for 2003
Advances and loans to investees, net of allowance for uncollectible
advances and loans of $54,253 for 2004 and $737,125 for 2003
Other

Total assets

2004 2003
$ 1,380,430 $ 3,957,623
888,403 713,492
2,268 833 4,671,115
376,756 387,844
14,433,055 12,580,750
1,587,883 1,965,564
470,431 300,836
19,136,958 19,906,109
15,295,657 16,234,622
2,084,294 2,165,340
846,011 627,276
152,554 137,412
3,082,859 2,930,028

$§ 37,515,474

$§ 39,070,759

¢

¢



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit and short term borrowings
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of obligations under capital leases
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue, current
Due to custodial clients

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion
Long-term commitments
Deferred revenue, long term
Deferred credits

Total liabilities
Minority interests
Net assets:

Unirestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2004 2003
1,394,787 1,610,186
204,133 220,088
213,322 294,510
8,352,721 9,126,126
3,122,966 2,819,122
376,756 387,844
13,664,685 14,457,876
10,518,256 10,577,121
161,449 374,033
1,142,487 1,211,796
400,000 813,492
286,188 332,055
26,173,065 27,766,373
986,571 1,137,736
4,752,131 4,638,543
5,603,707 5,528,107
10,355,838 10,166,650

$ 37,515,474

§ 39,070,759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOQURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF UNRESTRICTED REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Support, revenue and other:
Support:
Federal
Various states
City of Philadelphia, PA
Montgomery County, PA
Other PA counties
Medical assistance/managed care
Grants and donations

Total unrestricted support
Revenue;
Patient/client fees
Other fees and sales
Interest and miscellaneous income
Total unrestricted revenue
Net assets released from temporary restrictions
Total unrestricted support, revenue and other
Expenditures:
Program
Management and general
Fundraising
Other operating

Total expenditures

Equity in net losses of investments

Changes in unrestricted net assets before minority interests

Minority interests in net losses of investments

Changes in unrestricted net assets

2004 2003

$ 3,802218 $§ 3,366,715
19,025,333 17,172,960
34,874,167 34,378,807
8,914,613 9,299,398
9,002,605 8,111,172
11,036,134 8,930,163
861,912 1,138,732
87,516,982 82,397,947
10,118,122 8,446,250
2,995,432 3,311,219
809,229 480,944
13,922,783 12,238,413
1,145,189 1,959,302
102,584,954 96,595,662
87,561,093 82,178,976
12,734,611 12,670,832
387,666 157,004
1,396,498 1,553,240
102,079,868 96,560,052

(542,662) (636,526)

(37,576) (600,916)
151,165 146,641

$ 113,589 §  (454,275)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Unrestricted net assets:
Total unrestricted support and revenue
Net assets released from restrictions
Total expenditures
Equity in net losses of investments
Minority interests in net losses of investments

Changes in unrestricted net assets
Temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions
Changes in temporarily restricted net assets
Change in total net assets

Total net assets at beginning of year

Total net assets at end of year

2004

2003

$ 101,439,765

§ 95,870,083

1,145,189 1,959,302
(102,079,868) (97,793,775)
(542,662) (636,526)

151,165 146,641
113,589 (454,275)
1,220,788 1,828,439
(1,145,189) (1,959,302)
75,599 (130,863)
189,188 (585,138)
10,166,650 10,751,788

$ 10355838  § 10,166,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

8



8

‘SJUSLLSJE]S [EISUBUY PIIERIOSUDD 353y} jo ped |eiBsiu ue ale sajou BulAuedwodoe syl

£O'CLYOLS SEVEL ZZ9asy 919824 96'6266¢ LL'EZ8YE ¥5L1Zp9 r N i 69'[£9.8 iy JA8:1% abejueapy y10efolg

eT'als 628 s1e'e £9z'L 09.L'ge 6l6's §02'80% FArA ]} S65'18 SE)'9ze AvHY

620'2L) - 655 -1 vag'y ge1's 959°SE 150'sT opi'sl £¥5'6L Ers) ]

161's01 - G6l'e Lov'y 99¢'s 9Z5's 80652 Lig'y 680'6 628'0F 40 |anaQ Jesied

199'veT'L ovo'lL S6Z'LY $00'L 0.6°c6 6¥8's siv' 181 £00'S5 LZV'vel 88L'v2L Hels maN

£0E'Pes BEL'LS alp'es 29v's S¥89) 00°0 6lt'961 622'61 285'PE 8.c'ip) Soy-e-Mmopug

1£8'29 . - 6.5'} £09 D06 0or's 000'9 78568 96£'ae JdYVA0D Bwoy-e-mopusy

zel'e - - [-7.44 [ - - 09% 1A 1% 4 a1e Aesssr maN

S¥T'ess - §29'sH £55°01 s5Z'0¢ 615'LZ Liv'18¢ BrL'lE 656'89 901162 olessed - LVS

S0L'ETYS Z89'st gzo'er 8£9'co §19'9Z BE6'S) Siz'sr ¥.5'01 169'LS 82£'092 eujoJeD yUoN - LTVS
d3rio
sil'vey - 690'2 Z6Y'9 6E¥'S 8l's L'sTT 06'Y 1Z0've 9zZV'LEL suoisues) u Ajjwey
9Z9'€5L ZV'e 168°9E1 18622 £80'c9 8¥9'6l 26169 oL4'92 $SZ'6L 060'1EE 08Z} - Vihpy pedoddng
ssv'srs zis'vt Lza‘cl 108 zi0'vl 0Ls'zi 8L1'L 608'0¥ sl9'ael Z86'cES HaD - seowses HA peseg [ooyss
G9t0p9'eZ 626'98Z 156'656 £88' 11T ang'orr') 019'882 60L'¥08°T 08Z'0LL°} Z90'210'Y 090's5¥°S L SHWISHE - "viHd 40 ALID
9Z8'9tey 85’ 985'9) P'oL £8c's) 6550} S0£'s8 Z9L'ee 162'av S06°80T SHA - 'VIHg 40 ALY
P£6'929 5619 1zg'sl 600°) vES'9Z 9p9'L ¥80'TL 969'Z¢ 86276 059'89¢ MON ~ asnoH Ajlweg
£6¢'6ZS \gZ'e 51602 150'6 66125 z8g8'9 ser'es £88'6 9zl'sl 1£0'96Z eydppeliyd - soedsuewopg
919'¢6€ 0£9' 19191 gsl'e api'sz re's 8Lt'st 8ea'y L6795 £09°627 UMOJSLLION ~ 95N OH Ajlurey
Z6T'9ze 6v9 800G} FLTN oir'az gey's 859'68 Z9Z'61 199'00 8L6'TLL 2loWpIy - adedsUBWOM
EEF'EFO’L geL's ¥i9'9Z 9z8't i8v'ss 0LZ't) 88.1'001 Lia A £zL'0z} 6v5'08S 1Bjusd sucpeyla op Lswobjuopy
e'vl - - - - - £z - 0ze'e 16411 SALYSNPLY] UOURW J3moT]
951'98L 626'62 €+'98 5082 ail'sz [- 11 g N 8 nor'eg y'e T8zl 60Z'62¥ 1ayuey Bulutel] |euonesop W
108'901'2 £0L'6E aLL'Es) ora'oz Z6t'18 PEE'EL ZEL'0EE 65Z'L61 9E1'652 88eLL0'1 V10 dsoy/swasAs Aleg |ERUSPISTY
T - - - 1Z8' L0} - BOE'T - 600'T rel'el uoddng Ajjwey
126292 yez'se 8zz'10l 6Z1's 9Zy'hL P19'CT £6T'0L1 116'0Z ¥09'68} L0g' 269 suoQNjosaYy ANISOd
Z90'196 SEE'D} 50L°29 1ES'e 259'09 85.'8 859'0Z1 Y’z cls'orl 99¢'0pS suofdQ man
15622 - LT BE8 135 i TAr 4 04T F9 a8l v66'Cl osjeq - Jeadwon
158'9Z) - ov8 Lz'e 648'T1 £lo'el §16'C 916's vag'sh 889'vL oajuoy - eedwog
181081 g9zZ'cl re'LL 8.8'11 550'Z01 659'0Z olg'ast 1912 $0.'652 158'096 SYYD - SUOPEPUNO4 MIN/SIANEWR) Y
£6£'8) - - 198 z 14 S0¢ ovl'vl ooy Zs0'T JayO - XS0 Ul SJUBYNSUCD
66£'SEL - - 8L 9l0'L 126 661'Z 0£L'09 1ZE'0l zee'es IHIUCY Ul SJUBNSUCD

Z08'vY - - - 119 - 0622 g£5' r59 106'1€ Anugued veq

150'F9 - 91t ras'L $90°1L - zot's - 0i8'6 60E'LY ddl 214

€8L'vEL - 904'9 66E'L 06'Z 9lo's LoZ'sh v6Z'01 8r've SLL'ZZL jusweieuspy ased veQ

95V IES 9zi'0k 866'6L wi z9z'L vEe'yl IBY'EL 08L'sL 10808 Lie'SLZ R peding vea

riv'se - - - 5’ yoz'L BLL'Y 00Z'ZL g02'z ¥10's) OSYL HW
ONIMASNNOD NI SWYHO0Nd

085'61 - - - - 8s sZo'y - 619'C 618'TH asUE)SISSY JUSPMIS

5556 - 8ig - - 00z MLY'T - 0001 90¢'S uspeding vea

Z6L'65Y - 169'¢ £ZS'T 892't 0zZy'zZi we'os BLLYPLL oavi'Le vZ6' vl weneding HW
SIDIAHITS ONITISNNOD NORIIW ¥3IMET

WLOL INIWINGI BONYNILNIY ISIW $3Nddns SNOIL AONYANDDO| s3BANES | sL143N3] | STMVIVS
ANY '8 LINIWCIND3 anNV WYHOO0Hd |"¥2INNWWOD ANV §334 ,
ALYIHOULS TIVINS I3AVHL
O0Z ‘02 SNNr Q3AN3 Wv3A
STUNLIANIHX3 TYNOILONNS 40 INTWILYLS
*SNI ' INGWJO13A3Q NYWNH ¥Ed S306WN0s3y
-«




0l

‘SJUBLIIEIS [eIoUEUY pajep|josus asal) jo Yed jeifaj| ue sde sejou Buifuedwooae sy

820'cBZ - 8 55809 g8e'sl veLoL SEP'El 068'9L 196'LT 08z'ecel spienbajeg
£E0'0Y - £€5 otk'vl 9s0'e 869 - 6£9')Z - - abueyox3 sjusied
21T'v8 9:0'} - 186') 880'y $S0°0Z - 56 18801 s8c'or HOMWSN 8o1nosey siuaied
vre'iel - 9g0’) €l F4: 102 1sg't 986°1Z 8P'T) Z99'tl ove'sL JBjua) Uy siseQ
E9E'PES'F 0zl'82ZZ £8)'E6 Zas'or 292962 5l9'9L £50°002 £98'27Z0°} voL's¥b £ZT'LZL'T yomen Bujjesunod pue aogokld Aiuey
V811005 PEEEPLL TT'LE6E 8Y°L05Y L1'63E0T 96'0168 zoes B8'969ZZ 9" 98p68 60'VSS0EE juswebeuely sseg XIUI0Yd
Z/6'08S 961'8L Z£0'se 411 c6S'Yl 81g'L oLL'vl 6l¥'6 0zy'el 6Z°LlE Jayjays HI0ISPOOMA
589'PSL'L sro‘cl 596'19 626'2 Z0Z'sE) £61°0¢ rPi'Le 18602 899'06Z 05601’ 19)jays anueay abpiy
0i5'6vS 85v't £96°1 BOS'S vZ6't 892’8 zoT'lZ 1WA A 091'L6 Z88'66¢ 1410
£61'8L0'e - 15948 0s'9 665'8 Lovroz sPP'rel 591201 LiVise zog'o0p'z dS0D
§0L's0¥ ¥£9'2 zoe £86'2 zzz'oT L osi'9 agg'sl YOE'9Y 190'6£2 anH - PnquIno A 1935849
spL'y - - - . - - 6582 Lig Si5°} dsnJ - PHNGUINCA 21584
000'sZ - - - - - - - 89’y sie'oz 9809 - PINGYINo A J91S8yy
626'32 - - 6vi vi8'9 £0L'} - £Z6 £8€'Z 168'C) pundds - plInqpno ) 191says
6l6'EPS) LOE'PL TPSLL ziv'rl 0,909 98512 108'erl 8152 6e'sEZ 60126 W funog AusyBajy
2€6'94S 556'6 195'LE ¥88'L ace'y 888's tLL'0l 528'9 £26'16 ve'eLe epuol - depIopne 14
820°70¢'} Lor'si 59.'79 916’8 619'99 ZiL'Ll 0s6' 15t (¥1:] SPE‘BOT LiP'SEL aljauosier
¥os' 181} vzr'il 9gz'le zaz's €SB'6S SEL'6l cor'zel 8eT'28 809'6L1 geL'l69 asuel||y easy Aeg
S08°666 088'8Z PL9'L5 [8:4-] yee'ss rIST) 66111 160'12 £6L°IPL 102555 epUOld - OPUBLD
ror'sLz - 9¥L'0Z 1ze'9 £95'8 19zZ'2 ZE9'61 816 SP6'0E TP seungag - weaboud Aeq epiogy
eve'eal 811'T Z06'8 062'Z seo's 506'Z 6le'9z 0L ¥66'9Z 0Z¥'601 uoye 1d - wesbold Aeq epuoly
962'2¥6 8L¥'s ar0's 199'z¢ Lsp'es £6€'LL Zec'es 066 $L0'0Gt 0£¥'809 sasseye|ie ) - |eguIpIsay epuo|y
81v'199'C 961'vS 162'602 zTLL'9E Z68'68 vev'sy 8Z8'8LT vil'ar pls'6le £8£°128' weibod inonasuuo)
BG6'LSY - £VZIT 68L'} 99061 19'e €ze'Le tee'e £PL'BL 888'€6Z funog uoydweyuop - sbupdg adoy
VoL'sky 8E6B'0L 86222 199'1 5KZ'6} 585'G 598'vE sll's zag'esL £20°LLT &funog ybyan - sbundg edoy
106'05¥% 6£8's5 188'€Z 919'C 6591 09Z'y 9r6'L9} 880'Z SH6'ZE £00'S¥L speoY 501D
gessrs z85°l giL'9L lav'es v’y 1621 £6L°05 6EE'S ZIE'ez) S95'vEY Aepp ing ug
S8LEYE'T ayg'se v99'06 Lg'ez 866'LE 09822 988'212 $ee'ls TES'I8Y pos‘zon't uMQ IO UG
L2928 - (¥4 80M' I 06l - vi6'19 1zl - - Qunog uojdweyuon-pund xed 10V
9.8'v01 - 8re SEV'Z 0is'sh - Zsr'98 0L1'T - - Aunoy ybiye-pund x84 LOY
L19'8¥ 9.8'0l we'L 189'Z 91T oLo'L 2Z6'T 158't 869'c £94'0Z wea ) UORdEISAeS IBWINSUCD dWD
G£Z2'TL oLZ'l zie's ez’ z8's 82 188'9 £9z't §80'L Tre'ie suohIBUUOYD Aununuog - dND
160°68 ) Z66°) 098's 6€6 8o 1s8'y 102's 898’y geL'sZ 6ib'101 SHYC - diND
066°L6Z'4 viv'9s Lze'al £06'}L z85'9) 96¥'6E y00'0L 66P'GH E6L°LLL BLS°ZEL L1ov As|(eA ybiyan
1£8'2L1 L'TT 815'0) 6.5 5v6 0eZ's 2019 ¥or's $TL0 Zov'LS 3iqol - seapoadsied maN
ric' LT IS 096's 188 ¥eS'P to0L'L SHr'sZ LE9'PT 0S8'%E 068'651 auoyd - seaposdsiag maN
rsL'Iey £19'04 POP'6 £Z1'T 660°LT 99Z'L 81z Wwi'ez pez's9 LI6'LOT |EnuspISaY - saAnodRdsiad MeN
156'085 918'Z) sce's 1Zy'z 9Z5'PZ Tl 0L'9Z 099'29 yar'va 008'9v¢ asnoH adoy
850'6L8'Y 1£€'68 9.8'p9l ¥6.L'9Z 1p6'sSe LF0'69 190999 888'0Z 196965 LS1°EL8'T sweiboid sixy
06L'40} - $08't zo8'y 795'C (FARS 00z’ - 1529} 6v6'69 EUEISINGT - YoESNNQ Ysiled Uosisjjer
ZLVLLL - - ¥z’ 951 £rE's 9Z1'T - 159's2 182121 BURISINOT ~ [EmMaURY 128{01g
L0L'8L8 SE6 580'5 ovZ've Z9Z'ch 9zZ0'pE BFO'6Y 119'68 10Z's04 SLT'LYS BUEISINGT - LOVISON
vriivy - 59Z'L teL'L 685'82 osl's 695'VL 0E8°01 966'88 049'stZ BUEISINOT - sAemified
Z06'158 - LES'FL 080°8 9£0°99 oLL'E 65Z°6Z1 658'FS 65 201 azy'zay euelsine - asnoH Apwey
YrO'EZL 095 879'vZ slV'L 088'6S TLL'B Siv'8s 958'9Z 902°801 ¥as'LEy BUE|SINOT - USWO Joj SUORAO May
IvioL INTWAIND3 HONVYNILNIY OSIN $317ddNS SNOIL AONWdND2C| s3oningas | sLI43N3E | s3anivivs
aNY ® LINSWJIND3A anv WYHOONd [~VOINNWINOD dNY $334
AL¥Idoud TIVWS T3ATEL
002 0% INNr A3AN3 dv3A
S£3YNLIANIAXS TYNOILONND 40 INIWILYLS
"ONI ' LNIWJOT13A3Q NYINNH MOd $304N0sS3Y
-
[ * ~ * e ) L ¢ |




b

"SJUaWBEYS jeIOUEUY PajEPI|OSUDY 353y} jo ped jeiBaju ue ase sajou Bufuedwosoe ay)

999'/8¢ - - - - 0za've - - 156'Z9 ¥68'68Z Buisielpuny

LI9'PELTL S8l IEL 089'8LY 62Z'996 562'69Z $60'50E 696'05Z'L 28'918 6kS'PLY'L £82'595'9 {EJ3USD PUE JUsWmBELEN |E10L
mmm.mw_. - mmm.m.v w.vo_n - - wmh.w_. wmmﬁm - - wwmcwn_xw ulwpy Jususasld] Xxaanpyw g nhoU wainy
{19g'191) - - - - - - - {ovg'sz) {z10'eel) s)s0p Bulsieipung ujwpy Jo uoledyIsSE[IIY
0.9'v8 0:9°v8 - - - - - - - - $125SE Pax|} JO IS UC SSOT
(868'92) - - (sotr) - . - - (85} {1£6'92} pazjjendes $)505 JIBIRO
(rov'szz) (azv'el} - - . . (8z6'giZ) - - - spew spuawded jediound ygep wkia) Suoq
(881 LL¥) (sa1'LLy) - - - - - - - - pezyeydes juswidinba pue Aedoid
Zl1'9p9 ZLL'9P9 - - - - - - - - asuadxa uopezHOWE pue uopedaldag
£98'TEL'TL 100’ L6V 160692 OP0'E96 962'G92 $60'S0E [FANY ) 0 198'0Z. 215'ery'L IEE'VZL'Y |essuag pue jusuisfieuey
£60°196'28 wr'isZ') £10'099'y 080'08S'L Z60'06S'Y 169'v8E’L 5L9'ssy's ri'oss'y LoP'686°LL | L0L'E80'6Y welboid (2301
(eel'sze’t) (zaz'1¢8) - {0ss'86) - - (29¢'0.8) p21'68) - . sabieys Auedwoaisiu|
05)'S - - 05L's - - - - “ - paziieiden sysog RUIG
{601'922) - - - - {ozs've) . - (LIp'yE) (828'ssL} $)505 Buisiespung weibold Jo uoneoyisse|oay
15L'8 15.'98 - - - - - - - - PlOs $19SsE paxy Jo $J500
(0ot'ece) (s¥5'6zE) - - - - (ss8's) - - - apew sjuswAed jedpund jgep uus; Buo
{16£'659) - (202'29) (ss¢'s) - - - (vev'e) (otz'1L) (ev9'508) ulupy asuBINSU|
0ge'vos'L 0SE'P05°) - - - - - - - - asuadxa uoneziuowe pue uoneiseldag
S68'LIE - G68'1LE - - - - - - - pezijepden s)soo Alojusau) us abueyy
{zve'zvo’L} (zve'zvo‘L) - - - - - - - - paziendeo juswdinbs pue Auadoid
005°09% - - 005'09¢¥ - - - - - - SIOUBAPY g SIUBUNSIAU) pazieldes 1N
T10'9.2'88 Shh'eLe’L SZR'SSE'Y spr'ozz't ZE0'06S'Y Liv'eIr'l 1£8'see's 056'SE8'P 8S0'S60°T) £E9'6TLEY S{E}0L PUEID)
SIY 6 gg8l'9l Lz8'erl gee'9e 6ll'6v 1e8'll €228t S80S 93104 Z52'8)5 sweibold YO snoaue|RIsIY
les‘oBl'lL sk BBR'EED asr'99 105°} 662'S 551'65 £10'sT 88l've oL6'egL BuisnoH e|qepioly
(£i5'c0i] - - {avg'Lsel i ey £s3'e 00L'ss 919'28 PEL'ES] ajdoag 0} jepiden
155'v8) - ze 068'9 voL'9¢ [4: g - evL'cs os'y 965'62 youess aimng
9L5'€E0°} 6Y9 9l9's 908°95T 050'0% 9t0'9L 0045} Lo2'we 169°0L 957'80¢ sfuuwmbog menN
ZIT6YT BIL2 peLcl 0LL 6Z8'Z¢ 09t's vI6'61 or'L 020°L2 Loy LEL SiH sumipueig
¥Ze'eTL L'y FA= A T4 z68'C7 095'6¥ s 850'90} rs'al gl8'ie 06%'5ZP MmoN uo)Buiwfisg
19¥°'£02 - - LLe £66'V6 - +05'9 165'y TeL'LL 052'6L SuoNIAULOD Aunwwoed
S66'C6¥' | gLl 98.'sZ) Beg'ele Z6Z'0l -{E0 0¢l's8 zay'os 469'sPi Les'sLL jujog-oj-julod

Twiol INSWGINDI BONYNILNIYW oSIN s31ddNs SNOIL ADNYNODO0 | SIDIAMAS | SLIA3N3E | SAMVIVS
aNy ' LNIW4IND3I aNY WYHOOHd [-YIINNINNOD dNv $334
ALY3IdONd TIvIS 13AVHL
F00Z '0¢ INNT ASANT Wv3A
SIANLKANIHXT TYNQILONNG 40 INIWILVLS
*ONI ' LINIWH 013A30 NYINNH HOd S30WNO0SIY




Zl

‘SuaLwajels [E|oUeUY pajeplosuco asay) Jo Hed jeibau) ue ase ssjou Bulfuedwoose ay |

ciT'sle . 981'6E i50' SLL'lL o¥6 08l'8¢) ¥61 ¥8e'Ze 6LL'SE ank-Unpy anypoddng
s1'ssl £BF's9 188'F) zos'L sis'e 259'C 19T L - 6968 6LL'EY Hes - funo) ajesseyd
85L'Z8S - 66929 869°L LTINS 885'6) £55'p9 8re'iT 612'29 Lib'esT 09Z| - ¥npy pauoddng
8L 658'L 6t5') SSL b 8208 06¢'s PO’ LPE T9L's rr'ee 860'sPl uopjsuel] U sajjuued
966'906'5Z S0¢'£51 Tov'zos 904'c92 68S'LLF'S 99567 98L'PHS'T LO2'ZIS'E 69€°200'Y SLL'TLE'FE HIWHINO - "=Id Jo 10
£50°8 - - - - ges ¢t - Loz'h o' Awepesry SUcHoeIQ MIN
9zZo'sLy's TS ard'ze 681'SZ 6TE°86 ris'ze 659'992Z 1815 vZi'vel 19L'eTL SHQ - "eliud Jo Ao
$8c'ges - 900'61 9ve’s £18'92 994" 006'69 FiIX: 4 9zZ'86 LE'06E MON - 9shoH Ajued
BSL'FLS o'y 18¢'9}1 899'F 91T'8T oro's sEl'sy st1'TT sie'ss 95i'v1e elyd - asedsuewop
9)T'c6r 096'82 950'0r E6E'Z 8587 Zo¥'L Lov'or 006} 882's9 zot'otT UMOJS|LION - 3SHOH Ajuuey
1se'68e L0L'ey LI8'6) Lho'e 9TT'8z SEF'y yST'VE erL'eT 180')S £99'6L} aIoUIpIY - acedsuewIom
228'000°) TiT'sy 8sL'ee rls'e 958'55 0L9'Ch sre'Lob £59'651 869101 LL9'VEY Jsuag aucpepaly oo Aewodjucl
riz'sl - - - - - - - Svi'e 690'H seLsnpu| UoUsi JsMmoT
859'L¥L 0£9'2 £oL'vr 8Le'p 964'tT 800'E) z85°'98 89z's tel'sgl LZ6'61Y J=uep Bujule) reuopeson W
bV Ive' ] SrE'LY yea's $6L°0S TH'iz Lvg'ez ££0°82 zoe'eTT oLL'L¥8 suopnjosay sARISOd
tE1'180'T o Nk 4 zZ8L'iel 956'0Z Si6'LL oLs'st sSoT'lNe yrs'one 695802 1LL0'TP6 ¥12 andsayyswaysAs Aag [euapisay
vig'sil - - - beL'sL - - £o0L'0) ‘e ore'ze uvoddng Ajwed
SLT'Fo6 £Sh'lE ¥05'85 559'e vi6'6L soL'8 080'9)} rrl'e 0s6'6El 88.1'988 suopdo maN
9LL'vEl 098 £T8'L 98zZ'¢ 0aL'zL log'oL [+ WL L£8'ol 958'rL Jeadwon
£26'008'L (12344 TTo'ee £20'6 168°66 99122 £90'288 8ie'l L0z 45T 628286 Bupds)papysuonepunog MaN/saAeuI) Y
Lov'E - - - - - - 006 ¥8 Ly AU - 1XE0D Ul SJUEYNSUOD
060'FEH - - 888'9 ¥56°L Ler'L 6LL°) 0¥9'65 ShL'Y £8Z'1S PeuUOD Ul SJUEYNSUOD

295't - - T06'T azl 008"} €52 88’y 568 is'se ddl 21d

090'50Z (520'2) £8 00 95L'T 08y 119'6T 6T 0% 809°'1Z TLT'96 1t o1d

SEL'ELE . ooz 144 0Z9't 84y MWE'ST rA1% 0 5¢'6 89155 umoIsRod

Liv'ra - - - F173 - 906 188 yse's ££6°28 Aynujjues via

Ze¥'s - - - - - - - 528 299'y sjeoyag uopaly Jaddn

wWZ'TY - - - 18 P00’z £TE'T z ze9'9 £0T'1E SIBpUBYO [ENXIS

Zor'ssl - 8il TEG'Y T06°T bl BL6'YZ 018’2 159'92Z 619'9L} Jawsbeuel ased vya

888°89 - - 195 582’} 189 SSL'il - T6'6 tez'sy DSYLE ¥vRa

alz'cor - crL's £85's Ist's pse'e WB'9S 8rT've IV'Er Lr0'0LZ wepeding v3q

099'vp - - 259 a6k - col's 615'9) 9T’y 788’6} DSYLHIN
HNITASNNOD NI SWVHO0d

Z56°07 - - - €9 908 (AR ove 628'Z 05T 23uE)S|SSY JUAPMS

605'1Z - - - vst - Lzs'e - £28°s £0e'l wepeding veq

9gL'90F - gL'y SLL'H e’ LoL'ok Sil'vL 698'8PL e rLZe) yepedino HN
$301AMIS ONINASNAOD NOMAW MAMOT
weiboid

VL0l INIWAINDI | IONYNILINIVW osIN $3rddns SNOIL ASNYdNDDO $3DIAN3S LJINE FEL] SAVIVYS
anv ¥ ANINDINDI any NHH0Ed | “¥OINNINNOD anNv s33d4
Al¥3adodd TIVINS T3AvHEL
£00Z ‘0£ INNC AIANT YYIA
STUMNLIGNILXYD TYNOLLONNL 4O JINFWALYLS
"ONI "LNIWJOTIAIA NVYINNH ¥0d §308N0STy
- o L] €y * -~ o




£l

‘SlUBLIAJE}S [BIOUBUY PIJERIIOSUCS asay) Jo Wed |eibaju; ue ale sejou Bulduedwosoe ay|

080'6l¢ - P11 zoz'z 0242 FI1N BLE'28 P olLy'sg 085061 QanH AgD
£6P'S . . - - - - - 089 28T Y13 JeyseyD
£28'6T - - . {oog) - 6cF 65 28L'S sor'es asno-pIngEnoA Jaisayn
000°0¢ . - - - - - - 193'S 6EL'YZ 2gaAD-PINQIANOA J2SBYD
piece - ooF are apl'e yid 1y s29'z ree'y vrz'oT PUNGQINOA JSISD
91£'£99 eH'e FH{ N+ 'y 858'LS 1£5'2 126004 ¥er'el 581°Z8 Sov‘aLe MmoN uoyfiupuim
9LL'985") yea've Ter'Le LTI 8aL'lLs £60'52 9Bz'trl 74 A ¥4 056'55T ysr'ees yRungspid - HIN Auo Ausybayy
098'S6Y 810" oLz 89L'L Lob'sk gee's 15201 [-1:T g 1£9'69 zhL's02 ep{Io)d sjepiepne Jod
§90°55¢°} B8'LH 83y's8 109l Lob'ye GEZ'TH 19221 e Z95'P0T 16908 epUold 3ll|Auosyoer
698°182's 160°GL SS6'TY Zr'Ll 62864 45022 9IF1LZL Ls'sy 900’58l 98¢'s5. souel||y ey Aeg
vay'srz P6S‘'T zoz'Le 8/8's 196'SH £66'9 055'Sk 604 (-8 08a'9Z1 yejungjaq - weshold Aeq epuoid
9£5'050° £6t'ch $59°8¥ LLE'EL zzo'es L6 189'66 8iL'LL ac2'syl 879'6£9 epUOld OPUBHO
vii'es 15V's 168'LL o6L'e 950°L ¢L0T T65'ST 662 88L'6T 895'ZaL uoNEM I - weaboud Aeq epuoid
9zL'ors ¥89'9 ros's 14888 pig'iL ZoL's) 804'E9 0923 SIZ'PL 806'CLS sussEYE|[EL [EHUSP|SAY EPHOLY
19¢'604'Z $68°62 LZZ'6EL £ra're ¥azZ'06 648'29 982'c92 veZ'a9 910'see £67'96¢'} |epuUIp|SBY INIRIFULUGD
068'ZP 800°8 00L'LE 909'¢ See 26’ zol'e 512 z9g's2 &L0°'06 weibolgd Aeq Iagrsuuod
c99'p9L’y SSF'1S 066°cFl p06'€Z 802'064 09005 ok¥'L85 £PZ'Sl 899°L¥9 88109+ spasnysessep-sweiboly spoy
90Z'F5e zoe's 810'11 1Zz' sae'y £66's 51Z'29) 945’ 655°08 Lig'sty SPeCISS0ID
brd g 1R~ 005 £8F'Se 550'C 96£°ZE ei0'r LE'Le 8.6'6 6Z4'LL £66'22¢ Aep 1N Uuo
TEE'EL6'T 9Z6'8Z 12262 ¥ez'sk 8GO'2ZL 656°LE 625°0LZ EEF'6E £e8'c0s 6E1'PE8') umg Jnp ug
8zs'al8 8LL'11 LHeT 19'e 168°42 eLL'vl £26'65 orl'iz cTr'ovl 6ZT'65S sBupdg adoH
¥To'oezT's 200°2 66161 029'28 ¥y 662'22 TSE'LLT 844'0Z)L 190'6¢t L¥8'ole Lov Aayea yByan)
010°TI0'Y cI9's Tie'ie S06'9 Lov've S9T'6T T0'8Y izo'ss SEE'0SL 691'3E9 DOISHVOILSDISISND
ves'ves vil'z 8l6'LL voz'L 20822 609'6 08r'sz To8'9r Iy 7] 661'8z¢ asnoH adoH

T69'veL 5Lo‘9L 1629 71444 819'al 6¥P'0E 96€'2¢ £62Z'L6 68L'vE 199'9gy LOVISOW

oL8'z58 . 61T a baL'zs zor's LiVvezl 6SV'LS 0Z0'601 89Z'Z8K eueisine - asnoH Apuey

eob'es - 000'Z oeL'L 629'L zZoo'z - - £c0'a} 690'r9 Yoeanng ysued Uosiayap

¥ro'osy £8%°} [:1-74 LLG'S 9p0'0s Z51'e £ZV'EL Z8L'LL 16¥'0% zZeL'rse shemyyed

IBT'LIT - The'F z3g's 165°9 9zz'y z69'9 8050} 69.'sy 120°861 asnoH abefop

Si6'6L1 - 0sE oLL's por's £60'8 0£s's 166'L 628'12 ThO'eZ lesmeusy Wafoid

LI£'159 LS 96L'el oLy 686°9Y ozr's L1 a4 989'0¢ 610'96 PEB'SBE usiuop Jo) suchdo maN
Aa3aNnd ALINN

Le6'TLs - 159'41 16Z'L 9eZ'6e 6¥0'6 082'ToL ozL'EL 860°08 901°GLE avHy

L10°282°) - tal'cse £¥5'9 9zi'se vES'LL 126'Sh) c20'eL 8T5's6) Fi-3) JElS M3N

169'vLS 0Z}+08 oeL'ys 096'01 Le'sz TeP's LrL'9LZ zre'sl ££9'0E 8z9'seh sloY-e-MOpUT

LeB'2Zo - - 00s'L 05 Zso'L 0o 000'9 v58'6 515'28 d¥YQ0o-mopuz

8KE'ZIE Poe's TT0'T 6486 2211 85601 arL'sy 00z'LE §55'98 16v'69) ‘T

919'804 - 88 sre'l zes'e 7T aLr'Ll LO'L vag'vi 800'69 DOMd-1D |9A2( Ja8Ie)

rL8'6EZ - ad $06°82 Tio's siv's 95e'zTe 0zo'yl avra'aZ 9g4'sZ1 SS30~N0 [9ARq Jeale]
HIHLO

VLol INTWAINDT | IONYNILNIVIN OSIN S3anNddns SNOIL AJNVdNI20 s3DIAYAS S1143N349 SAVVIVS
anNv 2 INaWdINo3 aNv WYHD0Hd | -YDINNWKNOD QNY §33d
ALY3d0Oud TIVNS I3AVHL
£00Z '0€ 3NN A3ANI ¥Y3A
STAUNLKINIIXT TYNOLLONNL 40 INFWAL VLS
"ONI *LNAWdOTIA3T NYWNH HO4 S30¥N0OSIY
» o i L [ s ] ®




vl

‘SjuSLUSIE)S [RIoUBUY PaJeD||0SUCO asau) Jo Hed jeiBaju ue ale sajou BujAuedwoooe ay]

$00'251 - - - - - - - IPe'FE tay'zzk Busiespuny
zes'0l9'zL 810999 orZ've9 902'220'1 $E8'06Z Lse'ase SIL'SST'E chL'EPE 6vylze's ore'ely's |esauas pue juawabeuey jejo)
{e8p'az) (68¢'92) - - - - - - - - paz|edes 5)s0a 1ayi0
gEe's0e £82'Z - 5V6'8Y £06'e - 2950 Mro'scz - - waunsaaul xeini ¥ diod xanin
APS.NN t - - :an.NN ...- - - - - - - SITULADY § 1Seal] Jo :03“:5_1“0 BN
180'Z¢ 1£0'ze - - - - - - - - plos s)lasse paxy Jo 1503
{Z9g'aLL) - - - - - (29¢*9kL) - - - suud pue spaasasd Jqap una} Buon jan
(LpL'vir) {1vL'riv) - - - - - - - - pazijedes juatudinba pue Ausdold
819'€69 829'C50 . - - - - - - - ossuadxe uopezpiowe pue uopelsaidag
£BE'SLO'EL asT'6lp SPT'r99 852'00L'k zel'ave 1SE'95E 086'05¢° z10'0)L 6l LZe'L oyg'6li'e jeseUR g pue JuausSeue
9.6'8L1'Z8 796'052"L 268'c89'¢ rre'zs0’'s 898'1ZE'Y 626'L60') 6Zh'0TL'L BE9'S08'Y Z55'685' 1S 1gg'90%'ar weibold jeyol
(ezs'sez'y) {o6)' 221} - (rz6'svl) - - {rsz'cLe) (eve’15) - - safizeys Auedwooasep|
(zoL'orl) - - - - - - - (vzo'sbl) (651 °629) ujupy souEINsU) Jjag
(LL2'zh) {o00's) - - - - L'y - - - sysodep U 2buBya JeN
89704 829°20L - - - - - - - - pios spesse paxy] Jo 350D
(212'T92) zrvs) - - - - {966'L} - . - apew syawied jedjpuud ygap uuay BuoT
SIS'61S') SI5'6L8") - - - - - - - - asuadxa uofezyoWE puE uopeaidag
(r6l'LBT) {v62'1L82) - - - - - - - - pazjjendes s)soa Aiojusau] U) abueyn
(596°r6.L) (596'reL} - - - - - - - - pazijeydea Juaudinbs pue Ausdold
zag'zge'es SRLTEL'L l6¢'e89°¢ B9S'PEL'E 89@'1ZE'Y 626°L68'} ask'6re's 286'958'Y 9.5059' 1L 966'6E6'9F s|EBo) puen
662'¢SY'L 8al't¥ 69E'99) (¥ae'sy) S09'001 £8c'9l 805'sy ozy'syh 9gK'vLL vL1'208 suresford Jeyio m.am:g__oum_s_
80g°8es 9L (48418 559'€E 9P vz 588'90L 105's Le6°28T ozT'ry 0z'eIT swesboid sBupunbeg man
yo8'0ZZ - ¥5S £80°c c58'ZY VoL'vP - cir'ol £09'7 £15'52 jauyaiess sinyng
9zs'81T 188'e - z8s £88'801 - 6869 6i8's 9g6°Lt 0£8'¥L SuopoBUUg AYUnuwes
ol8'sG1') FA1-3:11 Tza'sol 6CL'Z2T 1202 V6292 £20°68 LiL's s18°8kL 921'65¢ Wwjod-oyjujod
9T9'792 o8l's 6z 5P’z STC'or Fi5'0k Tiz'el 9¥9'sT 60¥°VT 686'¥Z1 pJenBajes
TPV - 199 o] ] 128y 999 - £5z'2) - - abueyox3 sjusseq
9zl'ss . - £lz's 10L'e eTL'ze - 166°L 8Lv's roz'zr MIOMJBN 80INCSAY Spusiey
6V8'LT - - 880} £6p ¥ SoE c1z's o'z 166'SH juelp med Apunuiucy ajes
§52'092°) 9e5') 51 080'FPEL 192'28 649's res's 99’69 595's r4 1 £59'991 Buysnoy ajqepioyy
Z96'PEE'T poZ'se yeg'ss) 656°67 ZhLps) ¥To'eoL S6Z°6¥) DZ8'659 LIE'S6T 289°LES") Bujasunoy pue aspoesy Ajjurey
SuLL'sy - 108'9 S00'LL 002'21 L'l 6084 s¥Z'Le 095°'¥8 85Z'04E jumusBeuey ased Xjusoyd
Ter'vee’L SYLITH 4481 896"} ££5°26 TEP'ET 180'F9 669'T v15'182 816'ven’L J33ys anuaay abpry
ora'ale - L' 850° a5y 20001 830°6% LES'HE 5zT'88 tza'0se 11D
sec'agl's zz8'L 681'8) 0426 0L8g veL'ie ciF'FLL $SB'6S Ls0'cop POZ' IS ds0o0
iOL INIWAINDI | IONYNILNIVIN oSIW S3rddns SNOIL AINVINI00 £301AY3S SLI43N38 SANVIVS
anv 2 ININJIND3 any WVHOOHd | “¥DINNWINOD ANy $334
JNETEET ] TIYNS TJ3AVHL
£00Z '0¢ ANNI Q3ONT BvIA
SIUNLIANIEXT TYNOLLONNL 40 INSWALYLS
"ONI 'LNIWJO13A3Q NYINH Y04 $30HN0S3Y
* L. [ 2
¢ . L ° -



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in total net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in total net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Minority interests in net losses of investments
Loss on disposition of property and equipment
Increase (decrease) in provision of allowances for

doubtful accounts and uncellectible advances and loans

Depreciation and amortization
Equity in net losses of investments
Deferred credit forgiveness

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Grants and services receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Deferred credits

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in investments in companies
Acquisitions of property and equipment
Net (issuances) repayment of advances and loans to investees
Distributions from investments
Proceeds from sale of investment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds (payments) on lines of credit and short term
borrowings
Principal payments on Jong-term debt
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Principal borrowings of long-term debt
Forgiveness of long-term debt

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Consolidation adjustment

Cash and cash equivaients, ending

2004 2003
$ 189,188 $  (585,138)
(151,165) (146,641)
171,661 136,150
(59,579) 349,182
2,345,771 2,363,937
542,662 636,526
(57,047) (54,811)
(1,680,393) 144,361
377,681 (77,436)
(169,595) (36,888)
(15,142) 32
(759,994) (998,244)
(109,648) 1,239,686
11,180 -
635,580 2,970,716
(711,100) (1,058,641)
(1,128,978) (1,197,306)
(358,311) 46,413
2,250 665,493
191,518 -
(2,004,621) (1,544,014)
(615,399) 355,522
(334,724) (242,985)
(293,772) (254,719)
525,000 500,000
(314,346) -
(1,033,241) 357,818
(2,402,282) 1,784,493
4,671,115 3,387,051
. (500,429)
$ 2,268,833 $ 4671115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

2004 2003
Supplemental disctosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest 3 555,525 $ 773,825
Supplemental disciosure of noncash investing and financing activities:
Debt, capital lease obligations, and deferred liabilities
incurred for the acquisition of property and equipment b 446,250 b 82,042
Disposal of assets and related debt $ - $ 165,782
Change in long-term commitment and related investment $ 69,309 $ 1,376,796
Write off of advances and accounts receivable directly
against allowances $ 1,044,198 5 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Summary of significant accounting policies
Nature of activities

Resources for Human Development, Inc. (the Organization) is a not-for-profit organization
which operates programs nationwide, but primarily throughout the eastern United States. These
programs include mental health, mental retardation, homeless, drug and alcohol, community
living arrangements, affordable housing and probation and parole services. In addition,
through its for-profit subsidiaries, the Organization operates programs primarily designed to
lend and invest capital in businesses which are located in and employ people from economically
challenged areas.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Organization
and its for-profit subsidiaries, Murex Corporation (Murex) 100% owned by the Organization,
and Murex Investments, Inc. (Murex Investments) 93% owned by the Organization. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the audit guide
published by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Audit and Accounting
Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations, as required for Voluntary Health and Welfare
Organizations. Intercompany investments, advances and transactions have been eliminated.

Other operating expenditures included in the statements of changes in unrestricted net assets
relate to the operating expenses of the for-profit subsidiaries.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require not-for-profit
organizations to distinguish between contributions received that increase permanently restricted
net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and unrestricted net assets.

Donated services, mostly consulting services for various programs, are required to be reported
at their fair market value in the year that the services are contributed or promised to be
contributed. The Organization records in-kind income and expenses for reporting to its funding
sources in accordance with the associated contract requirements. These reporting requirements
differ from generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, only a portion of the
amounts reported to funding sources have been recorded as donated services in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Contracts and grants
Revenue from government contracts and grants, including overhead allowance, is generally
recognized as the related expenses are incurred. The Organization has significant contracts and

grants with various agencies of the federal and state governments, departments of the City of
Philadelphia, and various counties in southeastern and eastern Pennsylvania.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
Net assets

Net assets are categorized according to externally (donor) imposed restrictions. A description
of the net asset categories is as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - are those assets that are available for the support of
operations and whose use is not externally restricted.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - are those assets whose use by the Organization has
been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of temporary cash investments and receivables from governmental and other
agencies. The receivables from governmental agencies are primarily obligations of the federal
and various state governments, the City of Philadelphia and various counties. In addition, there
are accounts receivable from third party managed care organizations that reimburse the
Organization on behalf of governmental agencies.

Limited use cash

Limited use cash consists of representation payee cash fund and cash with contractual
restrictions. Some of these contractual restrictions require the funds to be held in a separate
bank account.

Representative payee cash funds are custodial funds that have been established to account for
assets received by the Organization on behalf of certain clients of certain programs. These
funds are expended at the discretion of the program directors, for the direct benefit of the
individual clients. This amount is included as a current liability, due to custodial clients.

Property and equipment and depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Provisions for depreciation and amortization are
made over the estimated useful lives, ranging from 3 to 25 years, of the respective assets using
the straight-line method. Maintenance and repairs are charged to activities as incurred. A
substantial portion of capital assets has been purchased through grants and contracts. Such
amounts received are included in support and revenue. Related expenditures are capitalized and
depreciated over estimated lives when title to the related assets is held by the Organization.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property and equipment and depreciation and amortization (continued)

Under certain program-funded agreements, ownership of property and equipment acquired with
grantor funds is vested with and may revert back to the grantor under certain circumstances.
However, due to the nature of the programs and the long term relationships of the Organization
with the grantors, management feels that the financial statements of the Organization are more
complete by capitalizing these assets.

Investments

Investments in partnerships, limited liability companies and unconsolidated corporations are
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements using the equity and cost
methods of accounting.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers cash on
hand, deposits with banks and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost, on a specific identification basis, or market (net
realizable value) and consists primarily of residential properties purchased for resale and related
construction-in-progress. Through various programs, the Organization purchases, renovates
and sells homes, primarily to eligible low-income families.

Pension plan
The Organization maintains a noncontributory, variable annuity "403(b)" plan for the benefit
of all full-time eligible employees. Each employee is fully vested immediately upon entry into

the plan. Employee participation is voluntary and contributions by the employees are pursuant
to salary reduction. The Organization does not match employee contributions.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Deferred compensation plan

The Organization has implemented a non-qualified deferred compensation plan in accordance
with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457. In order to receive a payment under this
plan, an employee must have both worked full-time for the Organization for 25 years and have
attained the age of 65. The benefit amount is equal to the annual salary that the employee was
receiving on the later date in which the employee completes 25 years of service or attains the
age of 65. It will be paid to the employee in four annual installments beginning in the year the
employee attains both criteria. At June 30, 2004 and 2003, the estimated present value of the
future benefits are $187,407 and $138,899 respectively, and have been included in accrued
£Xpenses.

Tax status

The Organization is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state and local laws, therefore, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Murex,
and Murex Investments, for-profit corporations, are subject to federal, state and local taxation.

Use of estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Financial instruments

Generally accepted accounting principles require entities to disclose the estimated fair value of
their financial instrument assets and liabilities. The Organization has identified the following as
financial instruments, all of which have carrying values which approximate fair value: cash and
cash equivalents, investments in and advances to partnerships and long-term debt.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists primarily of program revenues received but not earned as of the date

of the statement of financial position. Deferred revenues will be ¢arned as the program
conditions are met.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Deferred revenue (continued)

In addition, the Organization receives grants to subsidize the construction and rehabilitation of
homes under its affordable housing programs. Revenue from these grants is deferred until the
homes are sold. At the time of the sale of a home, the portion of the deferred revenue related to
the sold home is recognized as revenue in the statement of activities.

Minority interests

Minority interests reflect the equity of a subsidiary which is not owned by the Organization or
its subsidiaries.

Restatements

During the year ended June 30, 2003, a company previously wholly owned by Murex
Investments issued shares to new investors. This transaction changed the nature of the
accounting for that investment from a consolidated entity to an investment accounted for under
the equity method. For the year ended June 30, 2002, the accounts of the wholly owned
subsidiary were included in the accounts presented in the consolidated financial statements.
The only asset owned by that investment, as of June 30, 2002, was cash. Accordingly, in order
to reflect the current ownership status at June 30, 2003, a reclassifying consolidation adjustment
has been noted on the cash flow statement reflecting a decrease in cash and an increase in
investment in this entity.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the
2004 financial statement presentation.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Property and equipment

The following is a summary of property and equipment (at cost) and accumulated depreciation

and amortization:

Real estate and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

Computer equipment and software
Automobiles

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization

Property and equipment, net

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year:

Program
Management and general
Other operating

Equipment purchased through grants and contracts amounted to $1,372,487 and $794,968 for

the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Equity investments in companies and minority interests

The Organization has investments in the following companies either individually or through its

for profit subsidiaries, Murex and Murex Investments:

2004

$ 18,029,115
3,617,894
1,996,971
2,369,822
3,996,276

30,010,078

14,714,421

$ 15,295,657

2004
$ 1,504,350

646,172
195,249

$ 2345771

Company name Percentage of ownership
Biosoftware systems 13.20 %

City Sort, LP* 12.30
Computer Systems and Solutions, Inc. 30.00

CSS Laptop, Inc. 30.00

CSS Staffing, Inc. 30.00
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2003

18,475,764
3,439,903
1,790,792
2,145,327

3,880,677

29,732,463

13,497,841

16,234,622

2003

1,519,575
653,678
190,684

—

2,363,937
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Equity investments in companies and minority interests (continued)

Laser Laboratories, LLC* 43.33
Murex Capital, LP* 27.30
Murex Investments I, LP* 42,72
Murex Investments, LLC* 20.00
Phoenix Foods, LLC* 9.00
Sun & Earth, Inc.* 11,76
Urban Works, LLC/The Service Works Co.* 20.90
Other miscellaneous investments .01-1.00

Aggregate cost and carrying values of the investments are as follows:

2004
Original investments $ 4,900,900 $
Accumulated allocated earnings (losses),
net of dividends ( 1,823,742 )
3,077,158
Valuation allowances* ( 996,970 )
2,080,188
Other miscellaneous investments 4,106
Equity investments in companies, net $ _2.08429% $

* QOver the past several years, the Organization has received restricted grants and donations
for the purpose of investing in companies through Murex Investments, to promote
economic and job development in specified areas in Pennsylvania. These companies are
typically considered risky based on their current financial position and inability to receive
additionial financing from their banks. The wvaluation allowances pertain to these

mvestments.

The Organization has elected to record most of its investments using the equity method, even
some in which they own less than 20%. In most cases, the Organization exercises significant
influence and in those investments in which it owns less than 20%, the equity method
approximates the cost method. The Organization uses the cost methed in cases in which they
own less than 20% and do not exercise significant influence. The Organization’s losses are

limited to the extent of their capital contributions.
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2003

4,189,800

(1,017,764 )

3,172,036

( 1,010,802 )
2,161,234

4,106

2,165,340



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Equity investments in companies and minority interests (continued)

The minority interest in the Organization’s subsidiary, Murex Investments, consists of a 7
percent non-voting common stock ownership by another investor as of June 30, 2004 and 2003.
The Organization owns all of the voting equity of the subsidiary.

There are two investments in Murex which have minority interests. Murex has control of the
companies but not majority ownership. Control results from the Organization’s appointment of
management or members of the board of directors. The minority interests own 99% and
99.9% of the equity of the companies.

Advances and loans to investees and related party transactions

The Organization through its for-profit subsidiaries, Murex and Murex Investments, has made
loans and advances with certain partnerships and companies. In addition, the Organization,
through its subsidiary, Murex Investments, has made loans to certain companies with which it
has an equity interest. Murex Investments invests in certain companies located in distressed
areas of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. It requires all of its investees to adhere to certain
principles, including a minimum level of hiring local people from welfare, a minimum wage in
excess of the federal minimum wage, and the sharing of profits with the employees. The major
source of funds for investing and lending to these companies is a grant from the Shefa Fund.
The investments in these companies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
The nature of the significant loans are as follows:

2004 2003

Various advances to affiliated entities with
which the Organization has an ownership
interest or control. These advances have
no repayment terms. $ 614,283 $ 544,231

Note receivable to a company which bears
interest at a rate of 1% over prime rate,
5.75% at June 30, 2003. The balance was
written off as of June 30, 2004. - 137,355

Note receivable to a company which bears
interest at 1% over prime rate, 5.75% at June
30, 2003. This note was written off as of
June 30, 2004. - 599,770
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Advances and loans to investees and related party transactions (continued)

2004 2003

Note receivable to three partnerships which

Murex is a partner. The note bears interest at

1% over prime rate, 5% and 5.75% at June 30,

2004 and 2003, respectively, and is due on demand. 164,000 198,000
Various advances to companies, payable on

demand and bearing a 5% interest rate. 79,000 -
Various advances to companies, payable on

demand and bearing an 8% interest rate. 42,981 28,045

900,264 1,364,401
Less allowance for uncollectible advances ( 54,253 ) ( 737,125 )

$ 46011  § __627,276

In addition, the Organization purchases vehicles from a wholly-owned subsidiary. The
intercompany sales were $364,154 and $280,550 for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Deferred income taxes and net operating loss carryforwards

The for profit corporations (Murex and Murex Investments) have accumulated deferred income
tax assets resulting primarily from allowances created against investments, notes, and
accounts receivable and net operating loss carryforwards aggregating approximately
$900,000. A valuation allowance was created to offset the assets, as management
believes it is not likely that they will be utilized.

The Companies have net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $400,000 at December

31, 2003 (their latest tax year end) which are available to offset future federal taxable income.
These carryforwards will begin to expire in 2019.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Lines of credit and short term borrowings
The Organization has lines of credit and short term borrowings as follows:

2004 2003

Line of credit of $1,500,000 with a bank.

Interest on borrowings under this agreement

is based on the Federal funds rate plus 1%.

At June 30, 2004 and 2003, the effective rate was

3.75% and 4.25%, respectively. It is collateralized

by accounts receivable, inventory, furniture

and fixtures and equipment. The line annually

renews on April 30. $ 827,836 § 772,705

Notes payable, CLI, interest at 8.0% to0 9.3%,
collateralized by inventory; due at the end
of the related project. 153,951 337,481

Line of credit of $12,000,000 with another
bank. Interest under this agreement is at
the bank’s prime rate which was 4.25% at June
30, 2004, It is collateralized by accounts
receivable. The line annually renews on
April 30. 413,000 500,000

$ _1.394787 $ _1.610.186

The Organization is obligated under outstanding letters of credit of $2,204,671 and $1,200,000
at June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Long-term debt:

Mortgage notes, payable in monthly instaliments
ranging from $0 to $4,313, mostly including interest
ranging from 4.5% to 9.75%, collateralized by
various properties, maturing at various times from
July, 2003 through August, 2030. $ 4,339,187 $ 4,867,953
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003
Long-term debt (continued)

Mortgage notes, payable in monthly installments
ranging from $0 to $21,841, mostly including interest
ranging from 1% 10 7.1%, collateralized by rental
property and equipment, maturing at various times
from June, 2027 through December, 2028. 4,482 990

Mortgage notes, payable in monthly installments
ranging from $0 to $4,428, mostly including interest
ranging from 1% to 10.5%, collateralized by the
income producing assets, maturing at various times
from year 2021 through 2035. 743,252

Note payable, interest due semi-annually based
on interest income received related to investment
of these proceeds 1,000,000

Notes payable, due in monthly installments of $1,825
including interest at 7.5%, uncollateralized,

maturing July 2012. 131,960
Note payable maturing March 2007 including interest

at3% 25,000

10,722,389

Less current portion 204,133

Long-term portion $ 1 256

$

4,527,522

754,285

500,000

147,449

10,797,209
220,088

10,577,121

Maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
Thereafter
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158,870
193,940
274,153
169,517

9,721,776
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Long-term debt (continued)

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 was $555,525 and $773,825,
respectively.

Deferred credits

The Organization has received grants/loans from various governmental agencies for
acquiring and/or rehabilitating properties for specified purposes. If the conditions of each
grant/loan agreement are met, these balances will be forgiven over periods ranging from
10 to 20 years. The grants/loans bear no interest except in the event of default. No
interest has been accrued because it is the intention of the Organization to comply with
all related conditions. The deferred credit balances are as follows:

2004 2003
City of Philadelphia - Office of Housing and
Community Development (originated June
1990 in the amount of $150,000 to be forgiven
at the rate of 5% per year through June 2010) $ 45,000 $ 52,500

City of Philadelphia - Office of Housing and
Community Development (originated June
1991 in the amount of $150,000 to be forgiven
at the rate of 10% per year after the initial
10-year period) 105,000 120,000

Federal Home Loan Bank (originated June 1993
in the amount of $70,000 to be forgiven at the
rate of 6.667% per year over a 15-year period
ending June 2007) 16,796 21,463

Montgomery County Home Rehab Program
(originated April 1995 in the amount of $35,251
to be forgiven at the rate of 10% per year
through April, 2005) 3,526 7,051

Montgomery County Home Program (originated

June 1996 in the amount of $68,333 to be
forgiven in July, 2011) 68,333 68,333
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Deferred credits (continued)

2004 2003

Montgomery County Home Program (originated
September 1988 in the amount of $83,690 to be
forgiven at the rate of 10% per year after the initial
10-year period) 30,714 39,083

City of Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority
(originated November 1994 in the amount of
$157,500 to be forgiven at the rate of 10% per
year through November 2004) 7,875 23,625

Florida Department of Children and Families
(originated July 2003 in the amount of $11,180 to
be forgiven 20% per year through June 2008) 8,944 -

$ 286188 § __332,055

During the year ending June 30, 2005, it is anticipated that $49,173 of deferred credits will be
forgiven,

Lease commitments

The Organization leases various buildings and equipment under leasing arrangements expiring
through the year 2009. These leases are accounted for as operating leases. Generally, leases
with terms beyond one year contain defunding clauses which allow the Organization to
terminate a lease, within 90 days of the loss of government funding. Future minimum annual
rentals under lease arrangements at June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2005 $ 4,682,796
2006 1,685,393
2007 752,709
2008 423,078
2009 163,337

Total $ _1707313

The Organization also maintains numerous leases with terms of one year or less which are not
included in the above schedule. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
aggregated $6,436,532 and $6,147,996, respectively.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Lease commitments (continued)
Capital lease obligations

The Company leases numerous automobiles under noncancellable capital leases. As a result,
$1,759,157 and $1,951,518 of leased assets and $1,337,745 and $1,246,221 of related
accumulated depreciation have been included in property and equipment as of June 30, 2004
and 2003, respectively. The leases have imputed interest rates ranging between 4% and 12%
per annum. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2005 $ 233,121
2006 115,975
2007 40,198
2008 18,156
2009 892
Minimum lease payments 408,342
Less amount representing interest 33,571
Present value of minimum lease payments 374,771
Current portion 213,322
Long-term portion $ 161,449

Self-insurance

The Organization maintained a self-insurance program for workers’ compensation in
Pennsylvania, and automobile, general liability and property coverage for the entire
Organization for the year ended June 30, 2003. Effective July 1, 2003, the Organization joined
a captive insurance program which covers workers compensation in all states, automobile and
general liability, Excess insurance policies are maintained with respect to the various self-
insurance plans, and claims are handled by third-party administrators. Included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses at June 30, 2004 and 2003 is $841,064 and $1,105,331,
respectively, for future claims for all self-insurance coverage, which represents an estimate by
management. The ultimate cost, however, will depend on the extent of future claims.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Revenues - various states
A breakdown of funding from various states is as follows:

Years ended June 30,

2004 2003

Connecticut $ 2,615,978 $ 2,448,739
Delaware 578,374 448 684
Florida 4,930,847 5,615,932
Louisiana 3,170,654 2,648,943
Massachusetts 4,757,997 4,325,701
New Jersey 948,218 513,143
North Carolina 591,318 -
Pennsylvania 1,431,947 1,171,818

Total $__19.025 333 $ 17,172,960

Concentrations of credit risk

Programs operated by the Organization are primarily funded by various governmental agencies.
The ability of the Organization to maintain its overhead structure and meet future financial
commitments is dependent on the continued funding of these programs.

The Organization maintains cash balances at financial institutions located in various states.
Accounts at an institution may, at times, exceed the Federally insured limits of $100,000. As
of June 30, 2004, approximately $2,007,673 exceeded insured limits.

Other commitments and contingencies
Litigation
The Organization is currently defending itself in several ongoing lawsuits. All estimated costs

relating to these actions have been included in accrued expenses or are covered under existing
insurance policies.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 AND 2003

Other commitments and contingencies (continued)
Guarantee commitment

The Organization has applied the disclosure provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN
45}, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Inciuding Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, to its agreements that contain guarantee clauses. These
disclosure provisions expand those required by FASB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies”, by requiring a guarantor to disclose certain types of guarantees, even if the
likelihood of requiring the guarantor’s performance is remote. FIN 45 requires the
Organization to record the guarantee commitments as liabilities in the statement of financial
position, starting with guarantees entered into after December 31, 2002, rather than simply
disclosing the guarantee commitments in the financial statement footnotes. The following is a
description of arrangements in which the Organization is the guarantor.

The Organization has guaranteed that there will be funds available in an entity partially owned
by Murex Investments over the next ten years to match similar amounts provided by the Small
Business Administration (SBA). The entity will use these funds for technical assistance in its
investment program. If the entity cannot generate funds equal to the funds provided by the
SBA for paying its technical assistance costs, then the Organization must provide the funds. At
June 30, 2004, the Organization has received restricted contributions and grants available to
fund this project, if necessary. The present value of the liability at June 30, 2004 and 2003 was
$1,207,487 and $1,276,796, respectively. The current portion of this liability is $165,000 and
is reported as part of accrued expenses at June 30, 2004 and 2003, with the remaining balance
reported as a long-term commitment in the statement of financial position.

Murex Investments is also a guarantor of a $100,000 loan obtained by another company in
which it is an investor. The tota] liability of $100,000 is included in long-term commitments in
the statement of financial position at June 30, 2004 and 2003.

Capital commitment

Murex Investments is committed to invest $2,350,000 in a limited partnership whose objective
is to invest in a diversified portfolio of companies located primarily in economically distressed
areas. The commitment is funded based on capital calls made by the general partner of the
partnership and must be funded by March 31, 2009. As of June 30, 2004, $839,086 had been
funded.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

L |

Board of Directors and Officers

Resources for Human Development, Inc.
]

Qur audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements of the Organization taken as a whole. The accompanying other supplemental information on
pages 34 through 72 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic consolidated financial statements, Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

o applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

y Suchtron, /Tty Dear- § Tidovey K

Philadelphia, PA
January 7, 2005
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH/MENTAL RETARDATION
SCHEDULE OF ADJUSTMENTS ON PROGRAM ACTIVITY INVOICE SUMMARY
CONTRACT NO. 03-20019-01
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Code nos. 0200-1637, 0202-0942, 0260-1142, 0260-1143, 0260-1150, 0260-1200, 0260-1300,
0260-1615, 0260-1617, 0260-1637, 0260-1696, 0261-1200st.ctr02, and 0261-
1615st.ctr02.

There were no adjustments to the Program Activity Invoice Summary.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH/MENTAL RETARDATION
SCHEDULE OF ADJUSTMENTS ON PROGRAM ACTIVITY INVOICE SUMMARY
CONTRACT NO. 06-20008-01
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Code nos. 01-00-1400, 01-00-1493, 01-00-1602, 01-00-1612, 01-00-1613, 01-00-1615, 01-
00-1616, 01-00-1618, 01-00-1619, 01-00-1621, 01-00-1626, 01-00-1695, 01-00-
2218, 01-02-1616, 01-02-1695, 01-02-1696, 01-04-1615, 01-06-1696, 01-07-
1612, 01-07-1620, 01-08-1622, 01-40-1433, 01-40-1619, 01-40-1626, 01-82-1526
and 01-90-0100.

There were no adjustments to the Program Activity Invoice Summary.
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Total contract:

Less:
Funds drawn down - prior fiscal year

Funds drawn down - current fiscal year
Total funds drawn down

Funds still available for draw down

Taoal funds drawn down

Add:
Program income

Total funds received
Less:
Program income expended
Funds applied - prior fiscal year
Funds applied - current fiscal year
Total funds applied

Total funds due from funding source

Total funds available for disposition

RESGURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF SOURCE AND STATUS OF FUNDS

CDBG
funds

CONTRACT NO. 03-20480
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

HOME
income

Other city
funds

Noncity
funds

Total

¥ 50,000

50,000

3,000

2,000

3,000

2,000

5,000

5,000

$ 45,000

45,000

§ 5,000

5,000

5,000

3,000

3,000
2,000

3,000
2,000

5,000

5,000

$ 45,000

$

45,000
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM INCOME
CONTRACT NO. 03-20480

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Sale
proceeds
Program income (cumulative through June 30, 2003) $
Less program income expended in prior years
Beginning balance, July 1, 2003
Add program income received in current fiscal year
Less program income expended in current fiscal year
Ending balance, June 30, 2004 $

Rent
collected

Total
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Total contract:

Less:
Funds drawn down - prior fiscal year

Funds drawn down - current fiscal year
Total funds drawn down

Funds still available for draw down

Tota) funds drawn down

Add:
Program income

Total funds received
Less:
Program income expended
Funds applied - prior fiscal year
Funds applied - current fiscal year
Total funds applied

Total funds due from funding source

Total funds avaifable for disposition

RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF SQURCE AND STATUS OF FUNDS

CONTRACT NO. 04-20089

YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2004
CDBG HOME Other city Noncity
funds income funds funds Total
$ 90,733 b 217,200 307,933
76,625 192,633 269,258
76,625 192,633 269,258
5 14,108 § 24,567 38,675
$ 76,625 % 192,633 269,258
76,625 192,633 269,258
76,625 192,633 269,258
76,625 192,633 269,258
$ - $ -
$ 14,108 % 24,567 38,675
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM INCOME

CONTRACT NO. 04-20089

YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2004
Sale
proceeds
Program income {cumulative through June 30, 2003) 3
Less program income expended in prior fiscal years
Beginning balance, July 1, 2003
Add program income received in current fiscal year
Less program income expended in current fiscal year
Ending balance, July 30, 2004 $

Rent
collected

Total
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC,
COORDINATING OFFICE FOR DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE PROGRAMS
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES
BY CONTRACT/PROGRAM AND REVENUES BY FUNDING SOURCE
CONTRACT NQO. 03-20019

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Endow-a-Home
Outpatient Services
Contract No.
03-20019
Expenditures by cost center:
Total personnel services $ 47,427
Total operating expenses -
Total fixed asests 15,403
Total expenditures by cost center 62,830
Funding sources:
Client fees -
City of Philadelphia, Coordinating
Office for Drug and Alcohol Abuse 62,830
Other -
Total funding sources 62,830
Excess of expenditures over
funding sources $ -
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C3226

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Expenditures:
Personnel:

Salaries b 28,601

Fringe benefits 4,862
Total personnel expenditures 33,463

Operating:

Occupancy 7,030

Communications 973

Education/Program supplies 466

Printing -

Other 2,923
Total operating expenditures 11,392

Equipment:

Lease/rental 990
Total equipment expenditures 990
Total direct expenditures 45,845

Administration 4,219
Total expenditures 50,064
Program revenue -
Net AACO funded expenditures $ 50,064
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER C4226

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Expenditures:
Personnel:

Salaries $ 24,515

Fringe benefits 5,743
Total personnel expenditures 30,258

Operating:

Occupancy 4,972

Communications -

Education/Program supplies 514

Printing -

Other 103
Total operating expenditures 5,589

Equipment:

Lease/rental 626
Total equipment expenditures 626
Total direct expenditures 36,473

Administration 3,355
Total expenditures 39,828
Program revenue -
Net AACO funded expenditures $ 39,828
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF PROGRAM EXPENDITURES AND PROGRAM REVENUE
AACO AWARD NUMBER G4438
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Expenditures:
Personnel:
Salaries $ 32,315
Fringe benefits 7,601

Total personnel expenditures 39,916

Operating:
Occupancy -
Communications -
Education/Program supplies 3,746
Printing -
Other -

Total operating expenditures 3,746

Equipment:
Lease/rental -

Total equipment expenditures -

Total direct expenditures 43,662
Administration 4,018
Total expenditures 47,680

Program revenue -

Net AACO funded expenditures 5 47,680
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT
LEHIGH COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAMS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Hope Springs Hope Springs
Almond Rd. Friedens Rd. LVACT Flexible Funds
Revenue:
FFS Revenue 5 - 3 - 103,439 $ -
Recruitment and Retention 6,760 7.338 - -
Room, Board 15,829 16,626 - -
Request for Retained Revenue - - - -
Use of Prior Years' Retained Revenue - - - -
Other income . - - -
Program Funding 228,390 218,349 - 104,405
Total Revenue 3 250,979 $ 242313 103,439 $ 104,405
Expenses:

Salaries & Wages 146,944 138,512 55,249 -
Social Security 11,544 10,741 4288 -
Retirement - - - -
Other Benefits 27,828 25,950 9,077 -
Staff Development 711 683 844 -
Purchased Personnel & Services 466 1,202 7,866 -
Vocational Support Svcs (Flex only) - - - 2,010
On-Site Psychiatric (Hope House only) - - - -
Rent 5,109 4,937 3,671 84,363
Real Estate Taxes - - - -
Utilities 2,657 2,462 6 -
Insurance-Contents 96 96 23 -
[nsurance-Service 3,574 3,564 1,557 -
Housekeeping 4,982 3,616 23 1,619
Communications 3,476 2,636 2,979 -
Office/Computer Supplies 996 752 1,176 -
Computer Services - - - -
Copy Machine Lease - - - -
Medical Supplies 90 104 24 279
Medications - - - 7,238
Clothing - - - 189
Food 5,043 5,533 - 1,614
Rehabilitation Supplies 1,324 1,122 51 2,814
Recreation 254 252 - -
Household Goods 1,836 1,834 - 1,436
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOFMENT

LEHIGH COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAMS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Expenses:
Staff Travel
Client Transportation
Library
Miscellaneous Operating
Purchased Residential (LVACT Only)
Equipment and Furnishings-Large
Equipment and Furnishings-Small
Equipment Leasing
Building Repair & Maintenance
Land & Building
Equipment Repair & Maint. Contracts
Motor Vehicle Lease/Purchase
Motor Vehicle Expense
Motar Vehicle Repairs/Supplies
Motor Vehicle Insurance

Total Direct Expenses
Administrative Overhead

Total Expenses §$

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
OVER /(UNDER) EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Hope Springs Hope Springs
Almond Rd. Friedens Rd. LVACT Flexible Funds
453 548 5,099 -
- - - 1,565
16 125 124 -
431 126 199 870
. - 1 160
422 422 1,456 -
1,366 1,433 219 248
5,342 7,230 - -
602 913 124 .
- - 2,804 -
1,645 1,695 303 -
974 1,324 233 -
2,175 2,175 504 -
230,356 219,987 97,900 104,405
26,166 25,176 11,748 -
256,522 $ 245,163 3 109,648 $ 104,405
$ (5543 % (2,850) § (6,209) 3 -
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NORTHAMPTON COUNTY MENTAL RETARDATION PROGRAMS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
On Our Way

Revenue:
Northampton County MR $ 609,598
Client room and board 7,438
Northampton County C&Y 226,920
Other counties MH/MR -
Recruitment and retention -
Other -
Total Revenue 843,956

Expenses:
Salaries & Wages 494,965
Employee benefits 123,312
Miscellaneous personnel 5,094
Occupancy 37,491
Communications 11,797
Supportive Services 36,350
Transportation 16,958
Miscellaneous expense 13,600
Equipment and fixed assets 1,582
Repair and improvements 1,131
Other administrative supplies 7,557
Administrative overhead expenses 89,981
839,818

Less client room and board

Private Pay -
Other -
Unallowable expenses per 4300 regs -
Total net allowable expenses per 4300 regs 839,818
Support and revenue over/(under) expenses $ 4,138
Request for retained revenue $ 16,719
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Devor & Etskovitz, P.C.
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l ' y Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 7, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial
instances of noncompliance, which we have reported to management in a separate letter dated Fanuary
7, 2005.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. However, we noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider a reportable condition.. Reportable conditions involve matters coming
to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over
financial reporting that, in our judgement, could adversely affect the Organization’s ability to record,
process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the
consolidated financial statements. The reportable condition is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 04-1. '
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that
would be material in relation to the consolidated financial statements being audited may occur and not
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would
not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses.
However, we believe that the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness. We also
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have reported to
management of the Organization in a separate letter dated January 7, 2005.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and
various Federal and state funding agencies, pass-through entities, City of Philadelphia, and the
Department of Public Health and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the
Legislative Auditor as a public document.

W/JM,M Fotdters, L.

Philadelphia, PA
January 7, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board 6f Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Resources for Human Development, Inc. (the Organization) with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2004, The Organization's major Federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compiliance with the requirements of faws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its
major Federal programs is the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is
t0 express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. '

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial avdits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient
Audit Guide. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient
Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Organization's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable 10 each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004.
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Internal Contro! Over Compliance

The management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Organization's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide.

We noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance
that, in our judgement, could adversely affect the Organization’s ability to administer a major federal
program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,
Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 04-2 to 04-4.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control
over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be
reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are
also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions
described above is a material weakness.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State and City Awards

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 7, 2005. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expendimres of
Federal, state and city awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and the City of Philadelphia Subrecipient Audit Guide and is not a required part of the
basic consolidated financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and
various Federal and state funding agencies, pass-through entities, City of Philadelphia, and the
Department of Public Health and is not intended to be and shouid not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the
Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Philadeiphia, PA M""f WM ) M M /ﬂ c.

Jamary 7, 2005
76



LL
‘spJeme K310 puR 21B)s ‘Je1apa] Jo saampuadxs Jo ajnpay9s 0] $310U 33§

- 000°SL1 ¥0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN  856'€6 (we1do1d sreQ) 321a198 Aunwuio)

aid 20U UOqIe) YEnosy-ssed
- 8€5°9L1 £0/1€/80 - 10/10/60 1I-L¥000 8D d1HE  ¥2T'E6 s|led [IMANYIS/pPIoISHOqq Y
- Tr1'ove ¥0/1£/80 - £0/10/60 10-81L00 SO 08HO1  ¥TT'E6 sI[ed [[PANYoS/pIoJsRoqqy

$33TAISS UBWING] pUe yijes Jo jusuniedsq 11

TLELS uoneanpd jo wawuedacy g [0,

- TLE'LS $0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 6100Z-¢0  181'v8 UOEPIRIY [EUN/IRSH [EIUIA JO O
yeay 21qnd jo juowredaq erydiopepyd
/oIeflam 21qngd Jo wsunreda(] eiueajfsuusd ySnony-sseq

UoTeonpyd JO WUWIHEd(] 'S {1

— siymoldy Jo jusunuedaq 'S [eI0L

- vL8 ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 1-118-€0-060 195701 septunpoddo yiom
uoneiodio) wawdopaaq sd10ppiopm erydiepepyd ySnolqi-sseq

aINYN3[EY JO jusuniedaq 5 1)

3UR)SISSY [EIPUEULY] [€12pa]

51800 SEImIpusdxg pousg BqumnN IaquInpN I urelg01d/100ueIs YInoIq)-Ssed;/Ioiteld {BISpaj
pauolisang) ¥00Z juRIn) SJoeLn vado
y3noryssey [BIapa ]
$00T ‘0€ ANNL QAGNT AVIA

SAYVAY ALLD ANV ALVLS "IVHAddd 40 SHINLIANTIXT 40 TTNATHDS
"DNI ‘AINTWJOTIATA NVINNH H04 SADUNOSTH



$1507)
pavonsand)

8L
‘Spleme A1 pue 21e1s ‘[eiapag Jo salnpuadxs Jo ajnpayds 0} $910U 335

1€0°L8 £0/1E/C1 ~ 2O/10/10 0200616 0E9't6 SIINOSAY slualed
6£8°1T YO/1E/C1 - PO/LO/10 TT006Vi6  0L9'E6 93ueyoxy sjuared

[1Buno) Sutuueld senifiqesiq wawdooaa(y
/arelam 2liqnd Jo juewteda( BiuBAJASUUR] YTnOoUy)-sstE

10£°601 YO/12/01 - £0/TO/1 1 680FET10dN 85576 v
L16°501 £0/1€/01 -~ TO/10/11 680FELTI0HN  855°E6 £-ddvYd
£TLTTT ¥0/0€/90 ~ £0/10/L0 600VETTI0OAN  8SE'E6 SUOROAUUOY) ANUNUWILIO))
60£°€T ¥0/0€/90 - €0/10/L0 SSOPEIIIOHN  BSS'E6 SUOIIBUND) ANUNWILo))

arejjam d1iqng JO juaurkeda(] BIUBA[ASUUS [SNOIY)-SSt

$65°1 ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 106Ey  ¥66°¢6 s[{ed [IPAnYog/plojsnoqqy

[1ouno) Juruueld Ajrwe
/4ileaH Jo uawitteda(q erueAjAsutad Y3noay-sse

195°5Z8 $0/0£/90 ~ £0/10/L0 6v80T  8LLE6 sadessed Ayunwiro) - uno) Ausy3a)y

Yieay Jo wsuwnedaq BiueA[Asuua ySnody)-sst

TT6'6 ¥0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 L1eTE0  0ST'ee soedsuewopm
£TLS01 ¥0/0£/60 - £0/10/01 £0-0€LTILL6LHS OET'E6 asnoy Ajrure
198°C§ £0/0€/60 - T0/10/01 CO-0CLLTIIL6LHS 0ET'E6 3snoH Ajtwe,

BUBISINO'] YBNOIY)-SSt

08¢ $0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 IV 859'te UAIG % OM T “3UQ s101sI(g
1Zv'6r ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 OIvVMIN  L99'E6 UsA3§ % oM ‘duQ spPLIsIq
L£:14 v0/0E£/90 ~ €0/10/L0 OIVAMN  SF9'E6 U243 29 OM ] 2UQ SINSI(]
urerdold saoialag pejuswdolsaa(]
safiwre{ puy uaIpy?) Jo wawiedaq epuold ysnosy-so
SaImIpUadxy poting Jequinpy TaquinN 91 WeI30Id/I0T0ers Yonoi]j-ssed/I0jueid [eap
¥00Z WEBID sJoeisy vQaio
YySnompsseq [e1opa g
$00Z ‘0€ ANNC AAANT AVIA

SMAVAYV ALED ANV JLVLS “TVIIAIA JO STINLIANTIXT 40 TINATHDS
"ONI ‘INTFINdOTIATA NVIWNNH 04 STDYN0STH



$1500)
pauonsand)

6L59

056°19C

9TEVLE'T
906'9C
£2E'6L
8LOVTT 1
209
869°069

$96°'12
LYL0989
VELPSTL
TL8°09S
oge'es
878°6¢
¥90°'0$

985y

SaTmjipuadxyg
00T

6L
"SpIeme )0 PUE o§eIs ‘[BIapa] JO SaImIpuadxa JO S[NPayIs 0} $3J0U 995
$0/0£/90 - £0/T0/LO 106ty LIT'E6 S[led (IAnYoS/pIoIsHoqqy
J1ouno)) Sutuue|d Ajie]
/S901AI2G UBUINY JO Juswipreda(] erydiape[iyd Yysnory)-sse,

¥0/0€/90 - €0/10/L0 Z0~SPS0T-Z0  855°€6 SHOV
$391A19S UeWIngY JO jusuiueda(] eiydijepe[iyd Ysnonp-sse,
¥0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 SELIYL  BLL'E6 AN - fyuno) uojdureyuonN
¥0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 V/IN  8LL'E6 AN - Auno) Aswoduo
¥0/0€/90 - €0/10/L0 V/N  L99°£6 YN - Huno) LswoFuopy
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 V/IN  8LL'E6 AW - Aunoy AswoFuoy
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/LO V/IN  L99°¢6 V2d - Huno) A1owouoy
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN  656'€6 V2Q - funo) AowoZuon

SalIN0;) SNOUBA
fAIRJ[ M Jqnd Jo jusunreda(] BluRA{ASUURd YSnoay-sse,

Y0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 6100C-¢0  L99°E6 uolieprelsy JBIUSA/YiedH [EIUdN JO 22O
¥0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 6100T-£0  8LL'E6 uofieplelay JelUajA/gieay [eIUsjy JO 930
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 8000T-£0  0S1°t6 uonepIey TEIUN/YIEH [BIUaN 3O OO
¥0/0£/90 - £6/10/L0 9P0T-E0  L99°t6 a[doad x1uaoyd - SSHO
O/0E/90 - EG/10/L0 6100Z-£0  6S6'L6 SWOH - ¥ - mopuy - JYVAOD
¥0/0£/90 - vO/10/10 6850C-v0  OPO't6 13(04d uonuaARid ATH - OOVV
£0/1¢€/T1 - £0/10/10 0LS0Z-¢0  0OF6'to 13foid uonusAsld ATH - ODVV

yiesH Nqngd jo usiupeda( erydispejiyd
f2rEjiaM 21gqngd Jo weunieda(] BHIRAJASTUS] BNOM])-SSE,

$0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 1068y L99°t6 SIted [IHANYOS/p10JsHoqqy
[tounoyy Juiuue|d Ajiwe]
B[P M dt[qnd JO uauneda(] eiuea[dsuua YSnoiyr-sse

pol_g Bgumpn R_RUINN afmn welI501d/I01ueld Jgnoii-ssed/1010el3 [BI5p3
JUBLD) §,J0URID vado

y3Snolissed eiapag

$007 ‘0 ANNS AAANT dVIA

SAUVMY ALID ANV ALVLS “IVIAGTA 40 STANLIGNTIXE 40 ATNATHDS
"ONI ‘INTNJOTIATA NVINNH 404 SADUNOSTY



515070)
paucnsand)

118°16
9LO'LY
000°tS
97T
965°8G€
ZEE9LT
886°11¢

000°$Z

ov8TI¥

£05°C€6
TP 9ST
$T9°6T1
L9S°E1E
19%°0€1
LSTILE

8YT8E6"

Sl

£1€°01

Semmpuadxy

00T

08
"SPIEME AJ1D PUB 3E)S ‘[RIapa ] JO Saunpuadxa JO JNPaYds 0) $3J0U 33§

¥0/0€/60 - £0/10/01 £00£0ZH8YVY1  SETYI [emauay 19a{olg
£0/0£/60 - TO/10/01 T00L01d8YV1  SETHI Temauay 100fold
¥0/0£/60 - £0/10/01 910L0THRYVT  SETVI yoeay 10afoid
£0/0£/60 - Z0/10/01 S10tord8yv1 StTVvI yoeay 1oelo1d
PO/1£/£0 - £0/10/40 S10€0TH8YVYT  SETVI skemyied
S0/50/10 - ¥0/90/10 Z00t0otds8rv1  SETvL suondQ moN
P0/S0/10 - £0/10/10 £10£02d8F V1 SETVL suondQ meN

BURISINOT YBNOI)-S58

¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 ¥/IN  81TV1 PIIRGUINO A J215ayD)
Auoymy Wawdo]24a(] 91U J9)SAY) YSNoIyi-Sse

$0/0£/60 - 20/10/01 L00001H10Vd  SETVI uonisuel ], ut salfiure{
vopelodioy Juauidolaas(] SulstoH 997 YSnony-sse,

v0/1£/£0 - 10/10/70 §100-00d10Vd  SeTVI Bursnoy] aatuoddng
£0/1£/2T1 - £0/10/10 1006-06d10Vd  S€TVI SpeOISSOID)
PO/LE/CY - $O/TL0/10 1006-0THIOVd  SCT'¥I SpBOISSOIT)
r0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 PSO0-VAWIZOA  SETHI PIINqpno X 13jsay)
¥0/0£/90 - €£0/10/L0 SLI0-VANIIOA  StT'vl PUINQYINC A I3)say7)
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 9000-00d10Vd  StT¥1 dvHVv

JRWdo[EAS( Weqi[] pue SUISNOH JO juswHedac] 'S [
$IVIAIIG UBWINY pue yiesf] jo wewpedacy S} (@101,

¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 [-¥18-£0-060 855°¢6 sapunioddQ yiom
uoneiodio)y yuawdosasa(] asiopjop eiydjepe[iyd ySnoyl-sse,

polrag JaqQUinp RN i) WEIFOI0IOURIT 1an0S-5Sed/I0)TRId [BISDI,
jueln sJojuelny vd.1D

ynonpsse [elopa]

$00Z ‘0€ ANNC AAANT YVIX

SAUVAYV ALLD ANV ALVLS “TVIAAAd 40 STHNLIANIIXT 40 ATNATHDS
ONI INFWJOTIATA NVINTH 04 STIUNO0STY



S1seD
pauonsang)

8LY 95907

08€'61

08¢°61

0LS'6

0LS'6

YEO'LO9'Y

££9°T61
STY'9L
0002

9 Loy
1zizi

SeImIpusdxy
¥00T

18
‘spreme K12 pue 938)s ‘[B1opad Jo saamipuadxa Jo anpayas 0] sajou 2ag

2IURISISSY [RIDUBULY [BI3Pa] [BIOL

SIelJ Y sueIale A 3O jusunredsq "S'N [BI0L

soedsuewom

SIBJ} v SUBISJSA JO Juaunledaq ‘S
loqe- Jo juaueda g 2101

sanunyoddgy jiom

uoneiodio)) wawdooaa axiopop erydiapeiyd ydnony-ssed

J0qE] jo Juatnedad] 'S 11

usmdojasacy

ueqin) pue Fuisnoy jo juusuedad "gn) [BIOL

¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 §9502/629 6009
#0/0£/90 -~ £0/10/L0 1-10€-£0-060  8ST'LI
P0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 6300T-v0  6£TFl
Y0/0£/9G - £0/10/L0 68002-v0  8IT¥I
¥0/0£/90 ~ £0/10/LQ 08%0T-€0 QLT VL
v0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 [19€07-£0  SETYI
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 [9€02-¢0  1eT¥1
poLad RN JOqIUNN
eln s,10)uRIDy vadd
y3noxjsseq [eISpa]
P00T ‘0€ ANNC AAANT AVHX

UOTISURL] UI S21]1UIR]
UonISURL], Ul Sl TWIRE
Suisnoy sijqepiof v
JuaidopaAs(] Alunwuo))
pue JuisnoH jo 20430 ediopeiiyd Yy3nony)-ssed

I2YS HO0ISpoOM 7 1aY[RYS 2Fpry
13)jay§ J20ISpoo A, @ 1331aYs 93pry
SOOIAIRS JRJAYS
Aousrowd Jo 20130 evydjspenyd Ydnonji-sseg

31 Wergoid/IoTiels Ysnoiyl-ssed/I0JUels [e1aps,{

SMIVAY ALID ANV ILVLS “TVHIAIA 40 STHNLIANAIXH 40 T TAATHIS

"DONI ‘INTFNJOTIATA NVINNH Y04 SADUNOSHA



(4]
"spieme K19 ple e)s ‘[BI9Pa] JO sarmipuadxa JO S[NPAYDS 0) SI0OU 93§

8L¥959°0T $

S6S°1 S3JEIS A1} O} JUBID JIO[Y S20IAL3G YI[BIH PIIYD PUR [RUIAIBW P66 L6
8TOLYL 25Rq Y 0URISQNS JO JUSUNEAI] PUR UOLUSAAL] 10] SYURID) ¥o0]d -656°E6
000°SLT S30IAIAG UI{EH [BIUSN AHunwuio)) 10J sjueln) OoO[d -8S6'£6
768°68 pased jusweda(] [PesH :SANIANDY UONUAAAIG ATH -0v6'€6
81T°T16°01 we3olg 2ouelsIsSy [eIIPAN -8LL €6
69L°81L juel) §a0[g 5301ALag [RI208 -L99°C6
08¢ d-Al 2[iLL 31e)) 18150 -869°E6
1434 SIUBID) aelS SAdIAISS JIR[aM PIYD -C+9°'¢o
0L8°801 sjuein) Aoeooapy pue poddng siseq sanifiqesiq [euswdolaad -0£9° €6
£1S°1€L SaI[IWe ] ApaaN 10] aoursissy Alerodwa], -8 €6
¥85°8S1 wrerdosg uoneslddy pue jusurdojaasc] adpapmouy] paepl{osuo) -0ET €6
089°ZTI'1 SIUDY) YiEaH AuUnuImIo) -477°¢6
6L59 $92IAI5G - Buruuelf Ajiured -£17°€6
959'¥91°1 SSOUSSO[AWOH WOJ) UOTISURIL], Ul oUe]SISSY 10] s102001d -0S1°€6
TLELS SINN{IQESI(] Yim SU[IUTe,] PUB SIUBJU] 10] SJUeRID) -uoleonpy [eroads - 181 b8
08¢'61 SHjauayg a1e]) [EdIPIN] SURIAPA -600'+9
0L5°6 weSoid Py VIM -8ST'LI
£€9°T61 wedoid sdiysouped JusunsaAuf FNOH -6£7 71
S5 E81%Y wrei3oyd Suisnoy aardoddng -cez |
11z wreiBol] sjueln) 303ysg Aousdieowy - 1€ b1
$T9°€01 Sjuels) ooy Juswdojoas(g Aunwwo)) g1 7'y}
vLs $ werdoig durel§ poo,] 10] sjuelD) SUIYdIBIA SANBISIUTWPY 21818 - 195701

VIA) Aq oue)sissy |erdueuly [BI2paq Jo Alewwung

F00Z ‘0 ANNS GAANT HVIA
S@AVMYV ALID ANV ALVLS “ITVYAddd A0 STINLIANAIXT 40 ATINAAHIS
"ONI *INTWJOTIATA NVIANH 04 STOHNOSTH



£8
‘spreme Ao pue a1e)s ‘[eIapa, Jo sanjipuadxa Jo aMpaLds 0} S3J0U 39§

61LLES'] RUBISING] [E10],
- 666°LE1 F0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 £ol V/N SISLT) juspiy
- EEI6L PO/1E/€0 - £O/10/¥0 809 V/N skemyreq
- $8E°L19 ¥0/0€/90 - €0/10/L0 1383 V/IN 10y SISUD) 3[lqoy
- 000291 Y0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 i VN SWOH Ur AJTure,f SA[SUu|
- 0FO¥I1l ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/LO 9te VIN wowadeurA 958D PIsnooyg
- 162°LEY ¥0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 0t V/N 3SnoH A[iwe,]
- 7L8°68T £0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 tLl V/N osnoyy Ajrwe;|
BUBISINOT
795°088y BPLIOL] [€10],
- 6118y PO/0E/90 - EO/10/L0 O0IVMIN V/N Ajnue pue uaIpjiyy Jo usunreday
- ity #0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 OIVYMIN ViIN AJiuieg pue uaIpjig) Jo wawedaq
- 00092 ¥0/0£/90 - £O/10/L0 V/IN sgundg yeunjaQq
BpLo[]
PLERLS aleme[d3( [210],
- £€T°L6E ¥0/0£/90 - £O/10/L0 1L¥010 V/IN MON uojuruim
- IP1°181 ¥0/0€/90 - ¥0/L2/10 08¥010 V/IN awoH dnoig) s[|IH sumApuelsg
TR |
8L6°C19°T MIIUUOY) (B0,
- 8L6ST9T ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 FONRINSHLD V/IN weidolg Ae(] % [eBUIPISNY
T TRER ITUg]

2IUEBISISSY [ePURUL] AJUN0)NE)S

1500 samppuadxg polisg FELTN Tequumpy I[N WRIS0Id;I0IUELS Yonodyj-ssed/I0lueld [e1apad
pauonsanQ) 00T ueIn s JOJUBID) VaiId
y3anoiyissed [e1apag
$00Z ‘0€ ANNC AAANT AVIA

SQAVMYV ALID ANV ALVIS “TVHAAIA 40 STANLIANAJIXE 40 ATNATHDS
*ONI ‘INTINJOTIATA NVINIH H0d SADHNOSTH



SI50D
pauonsang)

161°998

161°998

L66°LSLS

L4

STL'86T

TLT'6SY

14

SSS'Ly

£98°¢z8’

$P0°sSe
£0T'yb
811

8L
1€1°1
81568
8L0°01
€679
176Vt
pSE'S
160°L

SSTmIpUadRg

£

P00T

'SpIEmE A0 pue 2Je)S ‘[BISP,] JO sainypuadxa JO 2[nPayds 0) $I)0U 33

¥8

KssIaf map jeloL

uoddng aa1susiuj [enuapisay
$301A13G UBWINE o Judwuedsg
ASSIa[ MBN

SPISnYIESSEN [BI0L

suoddng [Enpialpy] - SIXY
S[OOY2S J1qng UMOLTE M

SAIIRIOQE[|0) YN0 A Ueqi[] - SIXY
$331AIIS [BHUSPISIY - SIXY
SaUI] oY) SPISING - SIXY
suoddng [enpialpy] - SIXY
suoddng enplaipuj - SIXy
suioddng enplalpuy - SIXy
sHoddng jenplaipuj - SIXY
stoddng [enpiaipyj - sixy
suoddng [enpiaipyj - SIXy
Suoddng [enpIAIpuf - STXY
snoddng jenpialpuf - SIXy
sboddng |enpialpyj - SIXY
suoddng [enpiaipyy - sixy
uonepre)sy (RN Jo uaunredsq
SjiasnuDesseA

PO/OE/90 - £0/10/L0 SIP0E  VIN
$0/0£/90 - €£0/10/L0 6519 VIN
+0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 ¥9£009¥009THNADS  V/N
¥0/0€/90 - €£0/10/L0 SYE009V009TINADS VN
$0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 89€009¥009THNADS  VIN
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 95£069Y0697HNADS  V/N
FO/0E/90 - €0/10/L0 9SEOLOVOLOTINCIDS  VIN
$0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 9S£099¥0997HNADS  VIN
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 9SE0SIFOSITINADS VN
$0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 9SEOPOFOPITINGDS VN
v0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 9CCOIONQI9TINADS  V/N
+0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 L9E009V009ZINADS  V/N
+0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 9S£009Y009TINCUDS  VIN
$0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 SLE0SEPOSETINCDS VN
$0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 0S608EP08ETINADS VIN
poli_Rg IpquInp RETeII TN
JuRID §JOJUeIn) vadd
y3nonyjissey Te1apaq
#007 ‘0€ ANNC AHANT HVIA

SAAVAY ALID ANV HLVLS “TVHIAIA A0 STANLIANAIXT A0 I TNATHDS
"ONI ‘LNIWJOTIAIA NVIANH Y04 STDUNOSTH

)31} WeI301d/I0]UeIs JInoli-ssed/I0)uels [e13pa,



c8
-spreme AJI9 U 2Jels ‘[e1opayd Jo saImipuadxa Jo J[NPaYos 0} Sa0U 33§

ZSL'STI
- y88°ElL #0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 V/IN asnoy Ajjwe]
- 898°1 1 P0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN 1Xau0D) Ut Suensuo)
DOHIA Udnory-ssed
0081
- 00821 $0/0£/90 - £0/10/LO V/N 191U Jusuidojara(y 1931e)
voneiodio) vy y3noy-ssed
1641
- 16L°1 0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN asnoy Ajiweg
Joyoary 2 Sni Aunod-1, A3EA erewn[ y3noly)-sseqd
005°08
- 005°08 $0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN PlInQUING A 131S3Yy7)
s [ooyas puerdn 1953y Y3noyy-ssed
Nmﬁm.»—ﬂwﬂﬁum
81£°16S BUI[OJE) YHON [EI0L
- 81¢°165 ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/60 VIN Auno) aem 11VS
$901AJ9G UBLINY AJUNO)D) e M
eurjore’) YUoN
Ve Sarmpuadxy pouiad Toquinp JaqunN opn Ulexdo1d/10Uels Yanoa)-S5ed/I0)Uels [eIapa ]
pauonsanQy 00T el sJojuelf) vaio
ysnonpssed [etapaq
$007 ‘0€ ANNL AHANT HVIA

SAUVMY ALID ANV ALV.IS “ITVIIddd 40 STUNLIANAIXT 40 TNATHIS
*ONI "INAWJOTIAAA NVIAINH 404 SIUNO0SHY



98
‘spleme A110 pue 91els ‘[e1apa] Jo sainyipuadxs Jo Inpayos 0 sa10U 225

101°2L69°81
- 9L0€16'S $0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 6100C-€0 VIN uonepIedy [EIUIN/YE2H [RIUIN JO 33O
- $TL989°7] YO/0E/90 - LO/10/L0 80002-£0 V/IN uoiepreldy JejuN/yiesH [eIusiy JO 39430
00€°L6 ¥0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 SESOTH0 VN spIengojes
yijeaH 21pqnd Jo jusunteda(q eydapenyd y3noay-ssed
8.1°99
- 8L1°99 ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 8vi LDV VIN SOV
SRaIAJeg Ueniny Jo wsunredaq] eydppeiyd y3nomy-ssed
LLLO
- LLLD ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 SCIIS V/IN siled [[MANYoS/pIoysnoqqy
[oung)) Suruued A[lwe,] ySnoayi-ssed
€RE°LIE
- £6b'91 ¥0/0E/90 - £0/10/L0 781 LoV VIN soedsuewiop
- 9¥9°8T1 +0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 281 LDV VIN 11 HEIS MaN
- YTTLl ¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 4 ie )4 ViIN LIS MaN
ISH4 y3noys-ssed
arejjap olignd Jo yuaurgeda(] enueAjASuuS g
000°L6
- 000°L6 ¥0/0€/90 - £0/T0/L0 CL1£0 IN VIN sfied [[I¥ANYoS/pIojsioqqy
yieaH Jo uawredac] ruzajdsuuag
51500 saImipusdxg poiag FEUHITN| Taquinp 2117 Wergold;/I0jueld qonolyl-ssed/Jojueld [e1apa ]
pauonsany v00Z el s Jojuelny vado
y3noiyjssed [elopa)]
£00Z ‘0€ ANNI CHANT dVIA

SAUVYMY ALLD ANV ALVLS “TVHAQIA 40 STINLIANAIXT 40 TTAATHDS
*ONI “INANJOTIAHA NVINNH H04 STHOUNO0SHTT



S15¢)
pauonsand)

PST'L0]
LS6°IE

LTF'995¢

6Yy'TSY

1

£60°€6L‘Y

6v9'v11
12€°66€
789899
162°82
$80°01
96S°L1
000°£88
869°€88

7679

679

EHPZ9L

€Iv'T9L

SSTpURART

y00T

L8
*SpIEME ALD pUR 2)BIS ‘[Rlapay] JO Saimipuadxa JO 3[npayos 0} S3)0U 29§

€0/1€/21 - €0/10/10 VIN 1dd - Auno) AIswoso
$0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 V/N AN - Auno) Krswosiuopy
Y0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN AW - Auno) Arswouoy
#0/0£/90 - €£0/10/L0 VIN HIA - fiuno) Arswiodiuoy
¥0/GE/90 - £0/10/L0 V/N HIA - &uno) A1owoduo
¥0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN v2d - Auno) AwoduoN
¥0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0 V/N v - Auno) AwoIuon
Y0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 19T dWHW-Z0 VIN LOVAT - funo) ysiya]
y0/0£/90 - €0/10/LO VIN SHQ - A1uno) areme(g
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN dIDD PIINQUING A 121597 - AjUnoy) Iasay)
+0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 81 1OV VIN soedSUBLIO N - VR AIUNO0D) #3)Say)
FO/0E/90 - €O/TO/LO V/IN UW/H - 31d “0IU0y ‘uogie)
¥0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 6¥80Z  VIN safesseq Aunwwo)) - funo) Ausyda|y
SAUNDI SNOMBA YSNOI-S58g
¥0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0 [-518-£0-060 VIN sentunpoddo Yom
uoneiodio) Juswdolaaa( 2210R0 M BIydiapejiyd ysnomy-ssed
$O/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 19€0¢-£0 V/N IDN[AYS o0ISPOOM 9 I3[3YS Bpry
SOIAIRG I9)9YS Aouddrawy Jo 29110 erydiapeiyd ySnomnp-ssed
polI3g SEToITTITNG aqumpy apn Weisoid/iojueld 3no)-ssed/JojusIs [elepa;
ueln sJonreliny YD
ydnonypssed [BIapag
$007 ‘0€ ANNSL AAANT HVIA

SQAVMY ALID NV JLV.LS “TVIAQHA 40 STINLIANIJIXE 40 ATNAAHDS
‘ONI “INTWJOTIATA NVINH HOA SADUN0OSTH



HE)
pauosang)

€90°CL] SV

¥T6'PPLTE

180°L1€°CE

LEG'09Y'TT

8v¥°S16
G8E'EET
LOL 181
§€6°601

SeImipuadxy
00T

88

‘SpIeme K119 pue 2Jels ‘[e1apag Jo saumiipusdxa Jo 9|npayos o} sjou 833

¥0/0£/90 - €0/10/L0
v0/0€/90 - £O/10/L0
v0/0€£/90 - £0/10/L0
PO/1€/21 - $O/1O/10

polisg
WeIn

JDUE)SISSY [EPUBUL] AJUN0)) [ 3)E)S [€)0],

erugAldsuuad [B101,

a1eJ]a M 2liqng Jo Juswpeda(] vIUBAJASUUS [®10],

SELIFT  VIN Kepy mQ uQ - Auno) uoydureypoN
SELIPI V/N asnop 2doy - Huno)y uoydweyuoN
SELIFI ViIN YA - &unoD uoydwreyuonN
V/IN 1dd - &iunony ArwoS o
IBqunp FETTTTN I[N Werdod;/10j0.I3 (gnoaq)-SSed/10)ueld [eIapa
s I0JURIN) vadd
y3nonpssed [e1apay

p00Z ‘0€ ANAL AAANT YVIA

SAUAVAY ALID ANV FLVLS “TVHdIdIA 40 STUNLIANTIXT 4O TTINATHIS
"INI “INANJOTIATA NYINNH 04 SIOUNO0SHA

Lkd L2 ™ o & @



§s0)
pouonsangd)

£80°610°C

£80°610°C

£vS91

€791

0059

0059

089°'LY

089°LY

saImipusdxyg
¥00Z

68

-spreMme K119 pue d1e1s ‘[BI9pa] Jo sairipuadxa JO I[NPIYIS 0] SAOU 2

$0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0

£0/0£/90 - £0/10/L0

#0/0£€/90 - £0/10/L0

$0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0

pouad
jueln

19)24S§ MI0ISPOOM @ 19)[3YS 3PN
$adIAIRG 19)[OUS Aouagiaury Jo dYJO eiydjape[iud

sS40V
sadiAlag Upwny Jo Juswuedaq erydjapeliud

JUIOH - V¥ - Mopuy

swreIS014 9snqY [0Yoo}y pue Sni( 10§ 23U BupRUIPI0]) eiydiopeiyd

19€0T-¢0 VN
T0-SFS0T-C0 VN
6100Z-£0 V/N
£3+0C-10 V/N
TaquInpN FEDITN]
s Iojuel vado
ySnonjissed [e1epad
$007 ‘0 INOT AAANT AVIA

1afo1d uonuasald AIH
20110 SuneulpIco)) sANIANDY Sp1y elyd[epeliud

3DUE)SISSY euEuLy AJL;

3[in WEIg0Id/I0)0eIs [3noIyj-55ed/I101UeLD [2ISp3

SAUVMY ALID ANV ALVLS “IVdAd34 40 STANLIONIJXT 40 ITNATHIS

NI ‘INTNJOTIATA NVINH Y04 STIDANOSHA



51500
pauotisand)

TI0'8EL'PL

ILY'80T'S

0Z8°0S€

0Z8°05¢

S8 ILLT

£05°8€
WECEL'T

SeImipuady

r00c

06
"spleme AJ10 pue 2Jeis ‘[elapaj Jo sainypuadxa Jo 2npayds 0} §3j0U 33§

2DUEISISSY [eUBUL ) PUY RIS ‘[RIIpPI] [BIOL

JJuE)sISSY [edUeUl] AN |B10 L,

¥0/0€/90 - £0/10/L0 VIN Suisnoy s[qepioy
Auoymy juawdojaaspay viydjapeiyd

PO/0E/90 - £0/10/L0 61007-€0 V/N uoEpIEIaY [EINSIN/YIEIH [EIUSIA JO WO
V0/0€/90 - €£0/10/L0 8000Z-€0 VN UOLEPIRISY [BIUAN/UHESH [EILIA JO 99JO
yieay orjqng jo wawpedaq eydiapepiyd

poniad BqumpN ISquinpn 3NNy WeIgoId/I0/eid yInoIyl-5sed,J0TUeld [e1apas
neln SJoueID Yaio

ysnonypssed 1eIapag

007 ‘0€ ANNC JAANT dVIA

SAAVAY ALID NV ALVLS “TVIAAEA 4O STANLIONAIXT 40 TTNATHIS
*INI ‘INFAdOTAATA NVINNH d04d SEDUN0STI



RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL, STATE AND CITY AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2604

General information

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal, state and city awards presents activities
in all federal, state and city award programs of Resources for Human Development, Inc. All
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial assistance
passed through other governmental agencies or not-for-profit organizations, is included on the
schedule.

Basis of accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal, state and city awards is presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. The amounts reported in this schedule as expenditures may
differ from certain financial reports submiitted to funding agencies because those reports may be
submitted on either a cash or modified cash basis of accounting.

Relationship to basic consolidated financial statements

Federal, state and city award expenditures are reported on the statement of functional
expenditures as program costs, However, expenditures in the schedule of expenditures of
federal, state and city awards for certain programs which have incurred deficits have been
limited to the related contracted amount. In addition, for certain programs, the expenditures
reported in the basic consolidated financial statements may differ from the expenditures
reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal, state and city awards due to program
expenditures exceeding grant or contract budget limitations which are not included as federal,
state and city financial assistance,
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es) reported X yes none
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es) reported X yes none
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510(a)? X yes no
Qualification of major programs:
CFDA Number{s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.235 Supportive Housing Program
93.150 Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness
93.224 Community Health Centers
93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
93.778 Medical Assistance Program
93.959 Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $531,643
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X yes no
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Section [0 - Financial Statement Findings

04-1

Payroll

Condition: The number of total hours worked per day on employee time sheets was not
computed correctly in a number of instances. This condition was also a finding in the
prior year audit.

Criteria: The Organization requires all unit directors to re-compute and approve
employee time sheets prior to submission to the payroll department for processing.

Effect: Because employee time sheets are not consistently re-computed accurately
before payrolls are processed, inaccuracies and possible disallowed payroll costs may
occur.

Cause of condition: Procedures are in place for supervisory personnel to re-compiite
all time sheets. Apparently, this procedure is not applied consistently.

Recommendation: The Organization needs to ensure that this procedure is followed
consistently by all units. Periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should
be made through the internal audit function to confirm that there is adherence to the

procedure.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Section III - Federal Awards and Questioned Costs

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

04-2 Medical Assistance Program - CFDA No. 93.778 - Year ended June 30, 2004
Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 04-1 also applies to
this program.

04-3 Community Health Centers - CFDA No. 93.224 - Year ended June 30, 2004

Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 04-1 also applies to
the program.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
04-4 Supportive Housing Program - CFDA No. 14.235 - Year ended June 30, 2004

Reportable condition: The reportable condition at Finding 04-1 also applies to
this program.
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RESOURCES
HUMAN DE\EE(I?(I){PMENT, INC.

January 7, 2005
Department of Health and Human Services

Resources for Human Development, Inc. respectfully submits the following corrective
action plan for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Name and address of independent accounting firm: Shechtman, Marks, Devor &
Etskovitz, P.C. — 2000 Market Street — Suite 500 — Philadelphia, Pa. 19103

Audit period: Year ended June 30, 2004.

The findings from the June 30, 2004 schedule of findings and questioned costs are
discussed below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in
the schedule.

Findings — Financial Statement Audit.

Reportable Conditions

04-1 Payrol!

Recommendation: The Organization needs to ensure that timesheet procedures are
followed consistently by all programs. Periodic inspections of timesheets and time

summaries should be made through the internal audit function to confirm that there is
adherence to the procedures.

Action Taken: We concur with the recommendation. Our internal auditors will continue
their audits throughout the current fiscal year. Any errors found are corrected when
identified. Any necessary additional training is also completed.

In addition the organization has automated the time collection process for a majority of
the programs which will eliminate the computation errors in the total number of hours
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worked per day. We anticipate that the implementation of this automated process
throughout the organization will be completed by June 30, 2005.

Findings — Federal Award Programs Audit
Department of Health and Human Services

04-2 Medical Assistance Program — CFDA No. 93.778
Reportable Condition: See Finding 04-1,

04-3 Community Health Centers — CFDA No. 93.224

Reportable Condition: See Finding 04-1.

Department of Housing and Urban Development
04-4 Supportive Housing Program — CFDA No. 14.235
Reportable Condition: See Finding 04-1.

If the Department of Health and Human Services has any questions regarding this plan,
please call Mary Loomis, Chief Financial Officer at 215-951-0300.

Sincerely yours,

4

ff\lf’ka 1 -\_/ A G ~T
Mary Loomis
Chief Financial Officer
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDING

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Finding 03-2 Medical Assistance Program - CFDA No. 93.778

Condition:

Recommendation:

Current status:

This finding was a reportable condition stating that the number of total
hours worked per day on employee time sheets was not computed
correctly in a number of instances.

The auditor recommended that the Organization monitor the procedure
that supervisory personnel recompute all time sheets. In addition,
periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should be made
through the internal audit function.

The Organization's internal auditors continue their audits. Any errors
found are corrected when identified. Any necessary additional training is
also completed.

In addition, the Organization has automated the time collection process
for a majority of the programs which is expected to eliminate the
computation errors in the total number of hours worked per day. It is
expected that the implementation of this automated process throughout
the Organization will be completed by June 30, 2005.

Finding 03-3 Supportive Housing Program - CFDA No. 14.235

Condition:

Recommendation:

Current status:

This finding was a reportable condition stating that the number of total
hours worked per day on employee time sheets was not computed
correctly in a number of instances.

The auditor recommended that the Organization monitor the procedure
that supervisory personnel recompute ail time sheets. In addition,
periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should be made

* through the internal audit function.

The Organization's internal auditors continue their audits. Any errors
found are corrected when identified. Any necessary additional training is
also completed.

In addition, the Organization has automated the time collection process
for a majority of the programs which is expected to eliminate the
computation errors in the total number of hours worked per day. 1t is
expected that the implementation of this automated process throughout
the Organization will be completed by June 30, 2005.
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RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDING

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Finding 03-4 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families — (TANF) ~ CFDA No. 93.558

Condition:

Recommendation:

Current status:

This finding was a reportable condition stating that the number of total
hours worked per day on employee time sheets was not computed
correctly in a number of instances.

The auditor recommended that the Organization monitor the procedure
that supervisory personnel recompute all time sheets. In addition,
periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should be made
through the internal audit function.

The Organization's internal auditors continue their audits. Any errors
found are corrected when identified. Any necessary additional training is
also completed.

In addition, the Organization has automated the time collection process
for a majority of the programs which is expected to eliminate the
computation errors in the total number of hours worked per day. It is
expected that the implementation of this automated process throughout
the Organization will be completed by June 30, 2005.

Finding 03-5 Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse -
CFDA No. 93-959

Condition:

Recommendation:

Current status:

This finding was a reportable condition stating that the number of total
hours worked per day on employee time sheets was not computed
correctly in a number of instances.

The auditor recommended that the Organization monitor the procedure
that supervisory personnel recompute all time sheets. In addition,
periodic inspections of time sheets and time summaries should be made
through the internal audit function.

The Organization’s internal auditors continue their audits. Any errors
found are corrected when identified. Any necessary additional training is
also compieted.

In addition, the Organization has automated the time collection process
for a majority of the programs which is expected to eliminate the
computation errors in the total number of hours worked per day. It is
expected that the implementation of this automated process throughout
the Organization will be compieted by June 30, 2005.
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:.‘* \'} | Shechtrﬁan, Ma.xrks,

Devor & Etskovitz, P.C.

l ' J Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON COST ALLOCATION PLAN

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Resources for Human Development, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 7, 2005.

As part of our audit, we audited the method used by the Organization to allocate indirect costs as
reflected in the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Health, Office of Mental Health and Mental
Retardation program activity invoice summary as required by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Department of Public Welfare, Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300 Regulations. :

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Public Welfare, Section 4300.94 of the Titie 4300
Regulations states that "the overall objective of the allocation process is to distribute the indirect costs
of the agency to its various services or cost categories in reasonable proportion with the benefits
provided to these services or cost categories." The regulations require that the method used "shall
result in a fair and equitable distribution of costs and shall be in direct relation to actual benefits
accruing to the services to which costs are charged”.

The method of allocating costs for the year ended June 30, 2004 was based on various formulas which
allocate costs depending on the nature of the individual costs.

In our opinion, the cest allocation plan of the Organization results in a distribution of indirect costs, as
reflected in the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Health, Office of Mental Health and Mental
Retardation program activity invoice summary for the year ended June 30, 2004 in accordance with
Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300 Regulations issued by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Department of Public Welfare.

This report is intended solely for-the-information and -use of the Board of Directors, management and
the City of Philadelphia, Department of Public Health and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Lctnsr, 1k S o, | J

Philadelphia, PA
January 7, 2005
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::1{ \" I Shechtman, Marks,

APt Devor & Etskovitz, P.C.

l ' J Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON COST
ALLOCATION PLAN FOR THE UPCOMING BUDGET YEAR

Board of Directors and Officers
Resources for Human Development, Inc.

At your request we have performed the procedures enumerated below with respect to the administrative
costs distribution included in the Line Item Budget for the year ending June 30, 2005 submitted by
Resources for Human Development, Inc. (“the Organization™) to the City of Philadelphia, Department
of Health. Our review was made solely to assist you in your filing requirements with the City of
Philadelphia, Department of Public Health.

The procedures we performed are summarized as follows:

a. We reviewed a schedule contained within the 2005 Line Item Budget which reflected the
allocation factors utilized in distributing administrative costs,

b. We confirmed our understanding of the method of allocating administrative costs
through a review of supporting work papers and by discussions with management
responsible for allocation factors.

c. We compared the Organization’s method of allocating costs to those requirements as
specified in Section 4300.94 of the Title 4300 Regulations Related Methods for
Allocating Indirect Costs in order to determine whether the cost aliocation is in
compliance with those regulations.

d. We compared the allocation methods used between the current fiscal year and prior
fiscal year to determine consistency between years. The cost allocation method is based
on various formulas which allocate costs depending on the nature of the individual costs.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Public Welfare, Section 4300.94 of Title 4300
Regulations state “The overall objective of the allocation process is to distribute the indirect costs of the
Agency to its various services or cost categories in reasonable proportion with the benefits provided to
these services or cost categories.” The Regulations require that the method used result in a fair and
equitable distribution of costs which shall be in direct relation to actual benefits accruing io the services
to which costs are charged.
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Because the above procedures do not constitute an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, we do not express an opinion on the amount of administrative costs distributed to the City
nor on any other amounts contained within the June 30, 2005 budget submitted to the City of
Philadelphia, Department of Public Health. Had we performed additional procedures or had we
conducted an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, other matters might have
come to our attention that would have been reported to you. This report relates only to the items
specified above and does not extend to any financial statements of the Organization taken as a whole.

Philadelphia, PA ’/W‘? %Mé ZM ;ﬁ/M y Al .

Jannary 7, 2005
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MEMORANDUM OF ADVISORY COMMENTS
RESOURCES FOR HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

June 30, 2004
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::i \'l I Shechtman, Marks,
. «‘ Devor & Etskovitz, P.C.

l ' J Certified Public Accountants

January 3, 2005

Board of Directors
Resources for Human Development

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements for Resources for Human
Development, Inc. and Subsidiaries (RHD) as of June 30, 2004, we issued two reports, which
addressed internal controls. The reports are Report of independent certified public accountants
on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of financial
Statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Report of independent
certified public accountants on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program
and internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. In addition, we
noted certain matters that we believe you should consider. Qur observations were formed as a
by-product of our auditing procedures, which did not include a comprehensive review for the
purpose of submitting detailed recommendations.

The following summarizes our comments and suggestions.

Comments for June 30, 2004

Pavroll — Calculation of Hours Worked

At each unit, hourly workers manually record their start-time and end-time and calculate the total
time worked each day. In our audit, we found numerous cases in which hours worked were
incorrectly calculated. The incorrectly calculated time was then entered onto the units’ summary
time sheets that were then transmitted to the central office for payment. As a result, in those
cases, hourly workers were not paid the proper amount. The errors go in both directions,
sometimes more hours were paid than actually worked and at other times, fewer hours were paid
than actually worked. The net dollar impact to RHD was not significant, but there were
numerous instances in which errors occurred. This problem has occurred repeatedly over the
years.

We recommend that procedures continue to be improved or developed to prevent such errors.
We suggest that either the payroll department or internal audit function increase its inspection of
time sheets to identify errors. We are aware that subsequent to year-end, management has
implemented a new software system to electronically gather data at the source, transmit it to the
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Central office and then electronically calculate the time worked. However, because the
implementation occurred after year-end, we have not tested its accuracy. We recommend that
management monitor and test the system in order to determine its effectiveness and make any
necessary adjustments until they can be satisfied that payroll accuracy has substantially
improved.

Outstanding Payroll and Vendor Checks

During our audit fieldwork, we noted that some of the bank accounts have old outstanding .
payroll or vendor checks. The State of Pennsylvania requires that any vendor checks remaining
unclaimed more than five years after they became payable are presumed abandoned and must be
escheated to the State. In addition, any wages that have remained unclaimed for more than three
years after the wages became payable are presumed abandoned and must also be escheated to the
State.

We recommend that management make a reasonable attempt to locate the individuals or
companies to which the outstanding checks are addressed. If they are unable to locate, we
recommend that the checks be remitted to the State.

Accounting for Fundraising Activities

For years, all costs related to fundraising have been required to be reported separately in the
financial statements of not-for-profit organizations. These requirements include Financial
Accounting Standard #117 and Statement of Position (SOP) 98-2, Accounting for Costs of
Activities of Non-Profit Organizations, as well as those of many state and local governmental
agencies. The reason is basically that all federal funds as well as those grants of other
municipalities, are specifically forbidden to be used for the solicitation of funds. In the past,
fundraising activities performed by RHD have been relatively insignificant. Nevertheless, RHD
has always fairly reported its limited fundraising costs in accordance with federal guidelines.

Recently, the Organization has increased its efforts in fundraising. Accordingly, we recommend
that RHD expand the accounting procedures in place to accurately account for all fundraising
activities and comply with federal reporting requirements. To accomplish this, we suggest that
the accounting department create a separate unit within its system to account for all expenses
related to fundraising. The costs contained in the unit would include (but not be limited to)
payroll and related costs of all people involved in fundraising activities, printing, mailing and
travel. ' '



Accounting for Temporarily Restricted Contributions

During the course of our audit testing, we discovered that grants and contributions are being
solicited at both the corporate level as well as the unit level. Any contribution or grant made to
RHD that has stipulations regarding its use is considered to be temporarily restricted.

A few years ago, there was a management letter comment about distinguishing between
unrestricted and temporarily restricted contributions. As a result, RHD purchased software
named Raiser’s Edge. The software has the capabilities to properly record all contributions, but
it is only as good as the data which is entered into it. The current problem appears to be due to
information at the unit level not being shared with the corporate offices. No one at the central
office has Organization-wide responsibility to control all contribution-related information and
reporting.

We recommend that one person, under the direction of the Chief Financial Officer, be assigned
the responsibility to ensure that the accounting treatment of all contributions is accurate and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures. This person can perform this task,
probably quarterly, by using the general ledger to compile all contributions for the period. This
person should then contact each unit that recorded any contribution in excess of some amount,
say $5,000, and obtain all related documentation. Upon reviewing the documentation, the
individual should be able to determine if there are any additional promises to contribute as well
as whether there are any restrictions related to the contributions. Furthermore, this person would
be able to more effectively utilize the contribution-related software. In addition, we suggest
educating all people throughout the Organmization who have any involvement in soliciting
contributions and grants, so that they know what information they should pass onto the Central
Office.

Accounting for Commitments to Contribute over Extended Time Periods

Upon examining some of the contributions received at the unit level, we discovered that some of
them contained promises to make extended payments over more than one year. None of these
promises had been recorded in the general ledger. In some cases, no one in the corporate offices
was even aware of these promises. Accounting standards state that unconditional promises to
contribute should be recorded as revenue in the period the promise is made.

Based on the current system, revenue related to promises to give over multiple years is not being
recorded in the proper period. The result is that in some years, revenues, changes in net assets
and net assets are understated and in other periods, they are overstated. Although the error is
only a timing difference that self-corrects over time, generally accepted accounting pnnc1p1es
require all revenues to be recorded in the proper period.

We recommend that procedures be developed to ensure that RHD properly records all revenue
from promises to pay contributions and grants for periods longer than one year in the proper
period. In addition, these procedures need to address determining whether the associated



revenue should be considered as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently restricted.
We feel that the previous recommendation regarding the assignment of responsibility to an
individual under the direction of the Chief Financial Officer will also assist in correcting this
matter.

Timely Filing of Louisiana Audit Report

The State of Louisiana requires audit reports to be submitted within six months of the end of an
organization's fiscal year end. In the case of RHD, that filing deadline is December 31, 2004.
Failure to file the audit reports by that date is considered by the State of Louisiana a material
instance of noncompliance.

Although Louisiana considers the filing of the audit report later than six months after an
organization's year-end to be a reportable condition, most other agencies that fund RHD do not.
Accordingly, we are not reporting this event as a reportable condition on an organization-wide
basis. Nevertheless, it is our strong recommendation that RHD do everything in it power to close
its accounting books in a timely manner and complete its financial statements so that the filing of
the annual audited financial statements be completed prior to Louisiana's and all other funders'
required due dates.

Corporate Accounting System Computer Controis

The Organization’s accounting is recorded using Macola software. Due to the number of users
who feed information into the system, the magnitude of data and transactions that are processed
by the system, the reliance of users of financial data generated by the system for both internal
and external users, as well as the integration with other systems, we reviewed the accounting
controls surrounding the system. Our goal was to evaluate whether there were opportunities that
could potentially expose the system or the Organization to problems. Overall, we found the
controls and safeguards to be reasonably strong. The system seems to be safeguarded from
external attacks to disable, destroy or exploit business systems and information. It is protected
from hardware failures; malicious intent by disgruntled users; sites disasters resulting from fire,
theft, etc. and shared resources seem secure. However, we noted certain matters that we feel
should be brought to the attention of management in order to avoid potential problems.

Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Plan

Based on our discussions, there is a general disaster recovery and business continuity plan.
There is adequate insurance in place to finance the cost of replacing hardware and software and
other tangible assets. Computer software and data are backed up both on CDs and mirrored on
another computer at the Midvale location. However, in the event that a major catastrophe
occurred to the headquarters building and the premises could not be used to operate the
Organization, the plan needs to be more specific as to the restart and relocation of operations.



Through our discussions, we understand that management has discussed this matter and
developed certain contingency plans. However, due to the size of the Organization in terms of
both the number of people it employs and provides services to, we recommend that a more
detailed plan be documented to identify how the Organization would operate if the headquarters
and the equipment in it were not usable. This plan should determine the amount of time the
Organization could be un-operable. While it had identified Midvale as the location at which it
could restart operations, it is only large enough to temporarily house your most critical
transactional operations — payroll, accounts payable and accounts receivable. There is no room
for the rest of the Central Office personnel.

We recommend that the plan identify allowable down times for its operations, with a focus on
restoring the most critical operations as quickly as reasonably possible. Based on discussions,
the order of importance of critical operations would first contain payroll, then accounts
receivable billing and collection, and then accounts payable. There should also be a process for
communicating the Organization’s intentions to the personnel. RHD’s management would most
likely be the central source of disseminating information.

Acceptable Use Procedures

There is a lack of formal policies and procedures addressing acceptable use of personal software.
It is not clear how the Organization feels about employees loading personal software onto the
Organization’s computers, using the computers to play games, use of the internet for personal
reasons, visiting websites that may not be considered appropriate for the workplace, etc. During
the course of our audit, we witnessed the impact that a virus caused by shutting down the system
for multiple days. We also feel that the Organization exposes itself by allowing outside visitors
and vendors to use its network without first confirming that the user is virus-free.

We recommend that policies be developed and communicated throughout the Organization to
address the issue of acceptable computer usage. Not only will everyone in the Organization
clearly understand management’s views on the topic, but it should reduce the chances for
computer viruses to infect the Organization’s computer network as well as prevent unwanted
employment-related lawsuits and prevent improper use of company assets for personal use.

Summary

While correcting each of the foregoing points will not prevent or preclude errors or illegal acts
from occurring, they will assist in improving record keeping, internal controls, and the financial
stability of RHD. If you would like to discuss any of the matters in greater detail, please call us.

Shechtman, Marks, Devor & Etskovitz, P.C.

Very truly yours,



_RECEIVED
LEGISI ATIVE AUDITOR

0SFEB 28 AMII: 16

RESOURCES

FOR
HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

Please find enclosed our financial statements and memorandum of advisory comments
for the year ended June 30, 2004.

If you have any questions, please call Mary Loomis at 215-951-0300.

Sincerely,
/
/‘\V//La . L/ G o N

Mary Loomis
CFO

4700 WISSAHICKON AVENUE + SUITE 126 - PHILADELPHIA, PA 19144-4248 + 215-951-0300 - FAX 215-951-0312 - WWW.RHD.ORG



RESOURCES

FOR
HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, INC.

Resources for Human Development, Inc. (RHD) responses to the June 30, 2004
Memorandum of Advisory Comments

Payroll - Calculation of Hours Worked

RHD’s internal audit department continues to audit a sample of the manual timesheets
and summaries. In addition we have conducted trainings to communicate and reeducate
the supervisors on the expected recomputations of the daily hours worked prior to
submission for payment. RHD has invested in two softwares which allow for the
scanning of employee timesheet data and the automation of the calculation of the daily
hours worked during the payroll period. We had anticipated the software implemetation
to be completed by June 2004. The necessary software modifications and testing process
was extended and therefore completion of the implementation will hopefully be done by
June 2005. We believe that this will eliminate or greatly reduce the error rate in the
calculation of total daily hours on the timeheets.

Outstanding Payroll and Vendor Checks

RHD has spent significant time researching, contacting individuals and vendors and
reissuing checks for the stale outstanding checks. We will plan to submit the appropriate
stale checks to the State by June 30, 2005.

Accounting for Fundraising Activities

RHD agrees to create a cost center specifically to capture fundraising types of costs for
the year ended June 30, 2005.

Accounting for Temporarily Restricted Contributions

RHD agrees with the recommendation to collect all contribution related documentation in
the corporate fiscal department on a quarterly basis. This will be done for contributions

received in the amount of $5,000 or more. This will allow easier tracking of any
restrictions and awareness in the development of our donor database.
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Accounting for Commitments to Contribute over Extended Time Periods

RHD agrees that by implementing the collection of contribution documentation we will
be able to be aware of multi year donation pledges on a timely basis. This will allow the
corporate fiscal department to account for the multi year pledge in the initial year.

Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Plan

RHD agrees that the disaster recovery and business continuity plan is currently known
by a select number of people included in its development. This group is currently
formalizing the documentation of the plan to allow for distribution, The plan does include
a solution that allows for all critical Central Office personnel to have a workspace and
tools to complete their daily tasks. The plan also documents the expected time required
for the Organization to be fully operating.

Acceptable Use Procedures

RHD does believe that current virus scanning softwares are critical and are currently in
place. RHD management believes that it is the supervisor’s responsibility to be aware of
and to monitor the activities of their staff during work hours. Management expects a full
day of productivity from our staff and has assigned workloads accordingly. RHD will
continue to address the appropriate use of the computer during the workday.



